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b UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

et Subject: Precept for a Military Commission.

——

. the jurisdiction of exceptional military courts, ' It shall have jurisdiction over = =
" 21l persons in the custody of the convening authority at the time of the trial "

COMMANDER MARIANAS Ce A

The Commander Marianas Area, -
] Rear Aduiral Arthur G, ROBINSON, U, S, Navy.

s Pursuant to the authority wested in me by virtue of my office as e ]
Commander Marianas Area and Deputy Military Governor Marianas® Area and further by =
the specific authority vested in me by the Comnander-in-Chief, U. S. Pacific Fleet = .
(CinCPac conf, serial 0558, of March 8, 1946), and Pacific Ocean Areas, and Military
Governor of the Pacific Ocean Areas, and by the Jud e Advocate General of the Navy =
(JAG despatch 3117302, August 1946), a Military Commission is hereby ordered to B
convene at the Headquarters, Commander Marianas on Guam, Marianzs Islands, ab &t
10 o'clock a.m. on Monday, October 21, 1946, or as soon thereafter as practicable, =
at the call of the President, for the trial of such persons as may be legally y
brought before it. '

2. The Military Comnission is composed of the fellowing members, any
five of whom are empowered to act, viz:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, ROBINSON, U, S, Navy, President,
Colonel Adolph L, RAMON, Army of the United States,
Colonel Douglass G, PAMPLIN, Army of the United States,
Lisutenant Colonel Adolph ZUBER, U, S, Marine Corps, -
Commander Ramon J, WALLENBORN, Dental Corps, U, S. Navy,
Comuander Vance O, SMITH, U, 5. Naval Reserve, and of

; Lisutenant Daniel FLYNN, U, 5. Naval Reserve, Lieutenant Edward Ls
FIELD, U, S, Naval Reserve, and Lieutenant Fredric T. SUSS, U. S. Naval Reserve,
es judge advocates, any of whom is authorized to act as such, :

Commander Martin E, CARLSON, U. S. Naval Reserve, Lieutenant N Al
Commander Donald H, DICKEY, U. S. Naval Reserve, and Masanao TODA, and Kenro ¥T0, ' * 4
of Tokyo, Japan, both furmished by the Japanese Government, &all of whom are lawyers, =
are available and muthorized to act as defense counsel, This authorization does - = N8
not preclude as defense counsel others who are available and are desired by accused, %

Observers designated by the French and Swiss Covernments are &
authorized to attend trials wherein an accusced is alleged to have unlawfully killed'
French and Swiss nationals, A duly accreditod native of the Marshall Islande is
also authorized to participate as an observer in any trial of an accused charged s
with offenses against Marchallese, j U

L)

-
2

3, The Military Commission shall be competent to try all offenses within

L
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. one (1) above, and any white person whose nationality hss not prior to ordering
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; Ry e UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
% COMLANDER MARIANAS

k i mw - §
3 15 Octobar 1946.. b
. Serial: 1281 L
i " I; 3 .l‘ ) It{ : |
. Subject: Precept for a Military Commission, (continued). BB
s F rpspadiia s B ooy Semmmmnmameaasa

- gharged with war crimes committed against United States nationals, pﬂnou aferrod
y =tu in the despatch of the Judge Advocate General of the Navy cited in paw i*

of the trial been established to the satisfaction of the convening authordtys ¢ ,{Zi :
Nothing herein limits the jurisdiction of the Military Comadssion as to persons
and offenses which may be otherwlise properly established, W 3 ,; 5.

be The Military Commission upon conviction of an accused is W
to impose upon such accused any lawful punishment including the death sentence, j *
imprisonment for life or for any less tem, fine or such other punishment as the ',*‘-:'
cammission shall determine to be proper, R o '-"

i

5e " The proceedings of the Military Commission will be governed by t-hi’
provisions of Naval Courts and Boards, oxcopt thot the coumission is permitted tor
ralax the rules for navel courts to meet the necessities for any particuler £
and mny use such rulos of evidence and procedure, issucd nnd promulgatoed by the
Supromo Comuander for the Allied Powors,’ (Letter General Hesddquarters, Suprome
Cammander for the Alliod Powers, APO 500, 5 Docember 1945 A.G, 000,5 (5 Dec, 45)
IS, Subject: "Rogulations Giverning the Trials of Accused War Criminals,") as are
nuuaaaary to ubta.in justice, The comnmission may adopt such othor rules and Iﬁm, .
not inconsistent horowith, as it considers appropriate, i

6. This coamission is hereby cuthorized and diroctod to take up' the | 988
cases of Lieutenant TOMITA, Ryoji, IJN, Captain TANAKA, Hossheru, IJN, et al, and " =@
Sorgoant TAKANO, Masayoshi, IJA, ordcrod triod by charges and specifications dated E
rospoctively 26 ausust l’?hé 26 august 1946, and 16 Soptember 1946, and such other
casos as may bo now pending boefore the Military Comnissions of wh:l.ch Rear Adniral
arthur G, Rebinson, U, 5, Navy,-is Presidont, convened respoctively by my pmﬁq:tl

of August 2, 1946 end August 2!;, 1946, axcopt. such casos tho trial of which may ;
have becn commonced, _‘:t 4
Te Dotachmont of an officer from his ship or station doos not of it— ‘;':.

s8o0lf relicevoe him- from duty as e mombor or jud;e advocate of the commission, Specifl:
orders for such relief aro nocossary, '

Y
e

a8, Powor of adjourmmont is grantod the ﬂﬂ'.miEBiGn, and adjournod ; 3
possinna may bo hald at much timos and st such placos as the commission may dut-nmu,.

C. A, POVNALL, :
Rﬂ!‘u‘ ﬂﬂﬂir&l, U! st H&W‘.
The Comnandor Marianaas .irea,
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Judge Advocate General, U, S. Navy.
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UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
A16-2/FF12/ COMMANTER MARTANAS
JOM=10

11410 16 September 1946.
Serial: G0

From: The Commander Marianas Area.

Te 1 Lieutenant Damiel FLYNN, USNR, and/or
Lieutenant Edward L. FIELD, USNR, and/er
Lisutenant Fredric T. SUSS, USNR, and/er
your successors im office as Juige Advocates,
Mlitary Commission, Commander Marianas.

Subjects Charge and Specification = im the cases of:
Sergeant TAKANO, Masayoshi, Imperial Japanese Army.
1. The above named persem will be tried before the Military

Commigsion of which you are Judge Advocate upon the following charge and
specification, You will notify the President of the commission accordingly,
inform the accused of the date set for trial, and summom all witnesses, both
for the prosecution and for the defense.

CHARGE
MURDER

SFECIFICATION

In that TAKANO, Masayoshi, then a sergeant, Imperial Japanese Army,
attached to the 307th Independent Infantry Battaliom, First Mixed Brigade,
militery instellatioms of the Imperial Japanese Armed Forces, Chichi Jima,
Bomin Islands, and while so serving at said military installations of the
Imperial Japanese Armed Forces, Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, acting jointly
with ITO, Kikuji, them a lieutenant colonel, IJA, HIGASHIGI, Seiji, them
& captain, IJA, IKAWA, Shigeo, them a first lieutensnt, IJA, SHIMURA, Hiseo,
then a leading private, IJA, and other persons unknown, im pursuance of a
common imtent, did, om or about 7 August, 1944, on Chichi Jima, Bonin
Islands, at a time when a state of war existed between the United States of
America, its allies and dependencies, and the Japanese Empire, wilfully,
feloniously, with premeditation and malice aforethought, without justifi-
able cause, and without proper triel or other due process, assault, strike
and kill, by beyonmeting with a fixed bayonet, an Americen prisomer of war,
name to the relator unknown, then and there held captive by the armed force
of Japan, this in violation of the laws and customs of war,

%{:ﬂﬁﬂ:‘f«i
Rear Admiral, U.S. Navy,
The Commander Marianas Ares.

Copy to:
Judge Advocate General.

% &




feceived & true und correct eepy, voth in snglish and Japanese, of
thie charge «nu specification on the [%* duy of September, 1646,

& ¥ Lk

lskane, sayoshi.

ihe avove receipt wes transl ted Lo the sccuszed by me on

Ig day of Septenmver, 19
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United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Marianas,

Guam, Marianas Islands.
Monday, October 21, 1946,

The commission met at 10:05 a.m.
Presant:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Roblmson, U, 5. Navy,

Colonel Adolph L, Ramon, Army of the United States,

Colonel Douglass G, Pamplin, Army of the United States,
Lieutenant Colonel Adolph Zuber, U, S, Marine Corps,

Commander Ramon J, Wiallenborn, Dental Corps, U, S. Navy,
Commander Vance O, Smith, U, S, Naval Reserve, members, and
Lieutenant Edward L, Field, U, S. Naval Reserve, and

Lieutenant Fredric T, Suss, U, S. Naval Reserve, judge advocates.

Earl J. Criego, Flatoon Sergeant, U. S. Marine Corpa, entered with the
accused and reported as provost marshal,

The judge advocate introduced Vivian Kilner, civilian, as reporter, i
| The accused requested that Commander Martin E. Carleon, U, S, Naval .
LRenarvu, and Mr, Masanao Toda and Mr. Kenro Ito act as his counsel. Commander

Carlson, Mr, Toda and Mr., Ito took seats as counsel for the accused. '

The judge advocate read the precept, copy prefixed marked "A",
An interpreter read the precept in Japanese,
The judge advocate did not object to any member.

The accused cbjected to Lieutenant Colonel Adclph Zuber, U, S. Marine
Corps, because he sat as a member of the military commission which tried
General Tachibana, Private Kido and other persons upon charges based on the
same transaction concerning which the accused is on trial, and further that
Colonel Zuber was a member of the military commission which heard this
accused testify and admit by incriminating answers to questions put to him
by the prosecutlion certain very damsging statements which cannot but pre-
judice the challenged member against the accused, The accused asked that :
the challenged member admit that he did sit as a member of the said military |
commission and that therefore in accordance with section 382 (e) Naval
Courts and Boards, this commission sustain his objection to Lieutenant
Colonel Zuber as & member of this commission, The accused further asked-

| that this commigsion when ruling on his challenge amounce in open court
and read intc the record any basis for any rulings which it makes regarding
this challenge.

‘! The judge advocate made the following statement:
i
|




Befere the challenged member replies and with the permissien of the
| Cemmissien, I would like te read twe dispatches fer the censideratien and
| guidancs of the Cemmissien in view of the challege of the accused,

The president directed the judge adwecate te read the dispatches in
questien,

The judge advecate read a dispatch as fellews:
From: Commander Marianas
Action te: Seclar (JAG)

Infe tet  CinCPac/Pea
Subject is challenge of members Military Cemmission trying War Crimes X

JAG (WAR CRIMES DIVISION) 062125 March permits Military Cammissien relax
rules fer Haval Courts to meet necessities of trial x Interpret this te
purmit Military Commission when autherised by Convenming Autherity te relax
rule stated in Section 388 (Easy) Maval Ceurts and Beards x Unless etherwise
instructed prepese te direct commissien te deny challsnge of member when
challenged member declares in epen ceurt that he can truly try witheut
prejudice or partiality the case new depending accerding te the evidence
which shall come befere the cemmission x The rules of evidence preseribed
for the trial x The customs of war in like cases and his ewn consecience x
Estimate appreximately twenty suspected war criminals frem Chichi Jima will
be tried in the future fer different effenses grewing eut of similar state
of facts x There is persennal available fer enly ene military cemmisaien x
If new cemmissien required fer esach trial war crimes trials will be indefin-
itely delayed x Acknewledge xx Date 4 July 1946, Date Time Orewp 042355.

The judge advecste then read anether dispatch as fellews:
Frem: JAG
Actien tet CemMariunas

Infe te: CinCPac/Peu.

f Interpretation and prepesed actien contained urdis 042355 appreved x -
Censider SCAP Ruls 3 pertinent xx Date 10 July 1946, Date Time Greup 101635.

. An interpreter read both ef these dispatches in Japanese,

I The challenged member repliesd as fellews: ‘

: I ackmewledge that the statements ef the defemse ceunsel are substantial
| 1y cerrect; hewever, I wish te assure all parties te this trial ef my belief
| that I can truly try witheut prejudice er partiality the case new [
| accerding te the evidence adduced befere this cemmissien, the rules preser-
ibed fer this trial, the custems of war in like cases, and my ewn censcl

The cemmissien was cleared. The challenged member withdrawing, '




The commission was ‘ﬂ'ﬂlmﬁiutnthtriﬂ-t-m; the commis- o
' sion announced that the objection of the accused was mot sustained, '
The accused objected to Bear Admiral Arthur G. Robinsen becauses he sat
| as a member of the military commission which tried General Tachibana,
Private Kido, Lieutenant Colomel Ito, Captainm Higashigl, First Lieutenmant
| Ikawa, Private Shimura and other persons upon charges based on the same
| transaction concerming which the accused is on trial, and further that
Admiral Bobinson was & mesber of the military cammission which heard this
acoused testify and admit by inoriminating answers to questioms put to him
by the presecution certain very damaging stetements which cannet but prej-
udice the challenged member against the accused, Takano, He asked that the
challenged member admit that he did sit as a member of the sald military
commission and that therefeore in accordance with Section 388 (E), Naval
Courts and Boards, this commission sustain his objeetion to Rear Adairal
Robinson as a member of this commission, He further asked that this comis-
sion whem ruling on his challenge, announce in open court and read into the
record the basis for any rulings which it -k':rmﬁh; the challeage. e

The judge advocate stated that the two dispatches read previowly should
also be considered by the commission in ruling upon this challenge by the
accused.

The challenged mamber replied as follows:

I acknowledge that the statements of the defense counsel are substantially
correct; however, I wish to assure all parties to this trial of my belief
that I can truly try without prejudice or partiality the case now depending,
according to the evidence adduced before this commission, the rules prescribed
for this trial, the customs of war in like cases, and my own conscience.

The commission was cleared. The challenged member withdrawing.

The commission was opened. All parties to the trial entered; uuu-h-.
sion amnounced that the challenge of the accused was not sustained,

The judge advocates, esach member and the reporter were duly sworn.

The judge advocate introduced Lieutenant (junior grade) Frederick F,
Tremayne, U, 3, Naval Reserve, Mr. Fred Bavory, and Mr. Sem Ueda, as
interpreters, and they were duly swomn,

i The accused stated that he had received a copy of the charge and s pecif-
| icatiom preferred against him, both in English and Japanese, on Septeaber
i_ u’ lMl

. The judge advocate asiked the accused if he had any ocbjection to make to
| the charge and specification.

i The accused replied in the affimmative, stating as follows:
I object to the charge and the specification because although it is

| designated murder it does mot follow the sample specification in Section
53 of Maval Courts and Boards. The statement that the accused did kill is | .




a conclusion of the pleader instead of a statement of fact, and t

make a good specification for the charge of marder. If this is

vi of war, then I ask that the particular

be set out in the specification in order that the
as t

I
accused be fully advised of all the circumstances so

does no
only a

o enable me to
make any defense I may have to charge, I further object because
| the particular law or custom of wi,is not set out in the specificatiom, rocd
and thus I am not able to ny defense which may well

properly prepare
be a defense of a plea in bar as to the jurisdiction of this commission to
try this case or the jurisdiction of this commission to try viclations
of the laws and customs of war,

The objection of the accused was read in Japanese by an interpreter,
The accused further objected to the charge and specification as follows:
Gentlemen of the Commission:

The defendmnt Takano objects to the charge in this case. The prosecut-
ion persists that the defendant, Takano, then a sergeant, IJA, did, on or
about 7 August 1944, wilfully, feloniously, with premeditation and malice
aforethough, without justifiable cause, and without proper trial or other
due process, assault, striks and kill by bayoneting with a fixed bayonet, an
American prisoner of war, then and there held captive by the armed B rces
of Japan, this in viclation of the laws and customs of war, However, we
nnhtthtthnmmlmudmtmofnrtﬂ.“mhwlhdh e
this case,

First, the prosecutiom will insist in this case, as follows: The
is that of murder which is one of man's cldest vices, aﬂsimt-in;ﬂth
and Abel., It is highly proper that marder is considered a war crime, The
accused, charged with murder in this case, was thoroughly sware that his
act was both illegal and unjust, Malice is not necessarily meant in the
law & malignant spirit, a malignant intention to produce a particular evil,




| If a-man intentionally does a wrongful ast, am act which he kmews is likely
to injure ancther, that in the law is malice,

We maintain that the prosecution is mistaking law for mersals, Murder
camnot always form a crime immediately, BHowever malicious it be, we can
not punish if we have no laws or regulations to deeide it. mm@:ﬂf
| it is a definite criminal theory of the world that mo erime can be existeat
| without any criminal intemt. Though the echarge states: “wilfully, felon-
fously, with premeditation and malice aforethought, without justifiable
cause, or without proper trial or othar due process,” the defendant, Takano,
was then attached to the 3rd Section of the 3rd Company of the 307th
Independent Infantry Battaliom, Chiehi Jima, he did not commit the so~called
murder. As I stated above, it is a mistake to regard "murder® as "one of
| man's oldest vices originating with Cain and Abel® and to insist that murder
is considered a war crime,

The prosscution will base their case upon the laws of international
conventions. In the Hague Convention No. 4 of 1907 it is provided in article
four that: "Prisoners of war are in the power of the hostile Govermment,
but not of the individuals or corps who capture them. They must be humanely
treated.” Also article 23¢ states, "It is especially forbiddem - to kill
or wound .an enemy who, having laid down his arms, or having no longer means |
of defense, has surrendered at discretion." Japan has ratified this conven-
tion as long ago as 1907 and is bound by ite temms. In the Geneva (POW)
Convention of 27 July 1949, it is provided that: "Prisoners of war are in
the power of the hostile power, but mot of the individuals or eorps who have
captured them. They must at all times be humanely treated and protected, _

| particularly against the acts of violence, insultsk and public curiosity. BEE
Measures of reprisal against them are prohibited. Prisoners of war have the |

. right to have their homor respected®. ¢
f htﬂukmﬂnimmudpumunn;mmwg-ndm-lpoai-ﬂﬁ
fication sainst the defendant, Takano, be based upom the foregeing conven= <7
tions? 8ince neither Italy nor Bulgaria has ratified the 1907 conventim ,

this defendant insists that he is not bound by Article 23c, although Japam

did sign the comvention, and that the 1929 convention has not yet been
ratified by Japun.

The judge advocate replied.

The commission was cleared., The coomission was opened and all parties
to the trial entered., The commission ammounced that the objection of the
, accused was overruled and that the commission found the charge and specific-
ation in due form and technically correct.

The accused stated that he was ready for trial.
Ho witnesses not otherwise comnected with the trial were present. |

' The judge advocate read the letter conmtaining the charge and specification,
| original prefixed marked "B", in English; then an interpreter read a copy
in Japanese, prefixed marked "C",

. m-unudmnmipd‘;;rnumwmjudp advocate:

Qe Takano, Masayoshi, Sergeant, Imperial Japsnese Amy, you have heard
| the charge and specification preferred against you; how say you to the
specification of the charge, gullty or not n:l.ltqr‘!

A. I plead nmot guilty.




—

Qe To the charge, guilty or not guilty?
A. I plead mot guilty.

The prosecution began,

The judge advocate made the following statement:

Gentlemen of the Commission:

No part of the opening statement of the prosecution is offered as
evidence in the present case. It is offered merely as an outline of what
we hope to prove., Our evidence will show that around August 7, 1944, twe

American prisoners of war were exsouted on Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands. The
exscution was superidsed by Lieutenant Celomel Ito, who had the prisoners [/

| bayoneted by four men, two men stabbing each prisomer twice. It will be

shown that the accused, Sergeant Takano, bayoneted one of the prisoners,
After the bayoneting, Lieutenant Colomel Ito beheaded the prisoners, These

| American prisonsrs of war were given me trial and sbsolutely no justification

existed to prompt these brutal executions.

The judge advocate asked the cammission to take judicial notice of the
following:

That during the year 1944, a state of war existed between the Imperial
Govermment of Japan and the Government of the United States, its allies

| and dependencies.

That the island of Chichi Jima is part of the territory under the command

_o.tthlﬂ-_uulrllm.llm

The Hague Convention of October 18, 1907, and especially Article 23(c);
"It is especially forbiddem teo kill or weund an enemy who, having laid down
his arms or having mo longer any meams of defense, has surrendered at
discretion", Japan ratified and signed this convention,

The Geneva Prisoners of War Convention of July 27, 1929, and especially
Article 2t "Prisoners of war are im the power of the hostile power, but
not of the individuals or corps whoe have captured them. They must at all |
umhmmtmumwum,mmuwmuml
ence, insults, and publie curiosity.” .

The £ of the War Department Technical Manual 27-251 in whieh it |47
states that although Japan has not ratified or formally adhered to the
Prisoners of War convention, it has, through the Swiss Uovernment, qﬂldtn

| lpp];tln provisions thereof to prisoners of war under its control, and

also, insofar as practicable, to interned civilians.

The accused objected to the Commission taking judieial notice of the
Hague Convention of 1907 and the Priscuner of War Convention of 1929 and
lﬁdﬁhﬂthjﬂp;ﬂnhpnnthmm-uhwﬂthwtm |

they are required to do by section 27 and 309, Maval Courts and Boards, |

to require that the prosecutiom
'prnuthmammﬂm.lthwnthrfutﬂ.nuthﬂnuhhﬂqthﬁr




this ascused, a sargeant im the Japaness Amy, for a viclation of a law and

a custom of war which is set out in these conventiomns., The authority of

this commission to try individuals for vieclations of these comveatio be
established in sccordance with Section 405, Naval Courts and Boards, S herehy (47
of for this plea in bar, a plea that the accused Sergeant Takano is not subjest

to the couwrt's jurisdietion for the trial of an offense in violation of

articles of these conventions and laws and customs of war,

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was overruled and that the
plea in bar is denied.

A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn,
Examined by the judge advocate:

§. State your name and rank,
Ito, Kikmji, Lieutenant Colonel, Imperial Japsnese Army.

%. Are you presently confined on Cuam?
es,

Q. If you recognise the accused will you state as whom?
Talkans

re Sy PPy PP rr

Qs Were you ever stationed on Chichi Jima with the Japanese Amy?
Tes.

Q« Betweem what dates were you stationmed om Chishi Jima?
I was stationed on Chichi Jima during 10 July 1944 to the firet of July
Se

@ To what organisation were you attached om Chichi Jima?
I was attached to the Mirst Mixed Brigade Headquarters under General

|

Q. Do you know to what organisation the accused was atimched? llff’;’-f
No, I do not kmow, :

{8, Qe Did you ever see any prisoners of war om Chichi Jima?

A TYes, i

e

"9. Q. Do you remamber the date? |
A, It was in the beginning of August 1944. I cannot recall the exact date.

llﬂ.ﬂ. Where did you see these prisoners on Chichi Jima?
| A, I saw the priseners at the guard house of the 307th Battalion which was
|thll|.tuul1h

Ill.ﬂ.. Did you receive any orders with regard to these prisoners?
Ay Yes.

!12.0. What were these orders?

! 7 |




ordered as follows: "IiL has been decided that two American

aviators should be put to death.. You, Lieutemant Colonel Ite, supervise the
axséution,” The time was some time in the beginning of August 194kk. I was /%7
told to piek wp the two prisoners at the guard house of the 307th Battalion.
was also told that two men, a non-comsissioned officer and & superior

private from units other than the Headquarters would be sent as

13, Q. Do you remesber who gave you this order?
A. I received this order from the adjutant, Captain Higashigi, of the Bitgade /7

-m"a
| 1ke Q. Did you carry out this ordexr?

As r". ;

15, Q. Will you describe the execution as it took place?

A. The scene of the execution was at a clearing about 50 meters from the
road leading over Nakayama pass. The execution took place on a aslops that
sloped down from the south toward the north and it was held in a grassy

| grown elearing, that was about 20 meters square, To the east of the clearing

was the dug-out, about 1 meter desp. In fromt of this dug out four stakes

| were driven into the ground. Each priscner was made to sit down amd was
od

tied to two of the stakes., The distance between the positions was twe or

wo
| three meters. After the prisoners were tied, I measured off a distance for

the bayoneteers in order that with ome thru their bayonets could plerce e~
the chest right to the back, I arrasged the bayoneteers as follows: O(me
non~ocemissioned officer that came from a unit other than the Brigade Head-

to the prisoner on the right, that is facing the prisomer. The
lﬂpﬂiﬁrpﬂﬂhiﬁhmﬂunmtntwmmm rs
to the priscner on the left. Behind the mon~cosmissioned officer 1 design-

| ated Kido to take the positiom and behind the superior private, I designated

Shimura. About 20 meters to the south of the prisonsrs I arrenged the spec—|
tators in double ranks., The number of men was about 20. These men had come |
hrﬂﬂtpruﬂu.huumlhmﬂ:tth-tnth-ummdm-th-m|
in double ranks.

1&.%. Did these four men actuslly bayonet the prisoner?
As Teos, -

17. Q. How many times did each mean bayonet the prisoner?
A. Each man bayoneted the prisoper two times; that is to say, the two men
Mhﬁindthpﬂlomrmthﬂghhummmhin, and vice

| versa for the one on the left,

18, Q. You have mentioned the names of two of the bayoneteers as Kido and
Shisura. Do you know the names of the other two men? ,
do mot know |

,.
:

19. Q. Were these prisoners givem a trial?
A, I do not kmow. I only believed that as they were to be executed, a
justifisble cause was behind the execution.

20, Q. hmmumumummujmmthm-muTt
L h,!h“ L ]




| 21« Qs Vhen you received the order to execute these prisoners, were you
| told from what units the executioners would be chosen? .
A. At that time I heard they would come from Divisional Headquarters.

22 Ws Are you sure about Divisional Headquarters? '
As No, it was not Divisional Headquarters. It was from other units of the
|  First Mixed Brigade. I later heard it was the 307th Battalion. I do W6t < #
i know if the men came from artillery units, infantry units or engineering
unitﬂ-

i The accused objected to that part of the answer beginning with, "I later
heard..«" and moved it be stricken from the recofd on the ground that it
| was hearsay.

The Jjudge advocate made no reply.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

23+ s After the prisoners were bayoneted, what happened then, if anything?
A+ After they were dead, or killed, I beheaded them,

Cross-examined by the accused.

2ls s How long have you lmown the accused?
As 1 saw the accused when I assembled the men at the scene of the execu-
tion and I saw him from that time to the end of the bayoneting.

25, 4. Did you know who he was?
A. Not at that time,

26+ 4« How do you fix the date when you saw the prisoners of war on

Chichi Jima? ,
As Because I remember that the executions took place on the day picked for
target practice, and I also recall that I made an entry in my diary
regarding this matter soms time after the executions, Besides this, I also
heard in this court regarding the date.

The accused objected to that part of the answer beginning, "I also
heard in this court...™ and requested it be stricken from the record on the
ground that this answer is hearsay and the date is a material issue in this
trial. '

The judge advocate stated that he had no objection to that part of the |
answer being stricken from the record.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained and directed
that that part of the answer beginning, "I alsc heard...® be stricken from
the record.

27. Q. How do you know that the persons executed were prisoners of war?
| A+ I was told to go and pick up the prisoners at the guard house of the
| 307th Battalion. I received them in front of the guard house, and it was

then that I knew that these men were the prisoners that I was ordered to

axecute,




L)

28, Q. How dld you lnmow that they were Americans?

|As At the time there were no other persons except Japanese om Chichi Jima,
|and as I was told that there were prisoners at the Bigade Headquarters, I did
not doubt thedr word. f

The accused cbjected to the last part of the answer beginning, "and as
I was told..." and moved that it be strickem from the record. -

The Jud;o-ldmntc replied.
The cammission announced that the objection was not sustained.

29, Q. Did these prisoners have any identification marks on them?

30, Q. Did you yourself execute certain persons on Augnst 7, 19447
A. The day 7 August is not clear to me. :

31, Q. Did you execute any persons on Chichi Jima while you were there?
l.- h.

132, Q. Have you ever been tried for executing any persons on Chichi Jima?
|As I was tried here.

33, Q. What sentence was imposed upon you at this time?
The judge advocate objected to this gquestion on the ground that it is

The commission anmounoced that the objection of the judge advocate was

Who was the prisoner on the right hand side?
not know the names of both of them.

bayoneted the prisomer on the right?
soner on the right was bayoneted by the non~commnissioned officer

that came from a unit other than the Brigade Headquarters and Private Kido,
who came from the Brigade Headquarters.

36, Q. Who bayoneted the prisoner on the left?

| A. The prisoner on the left was eted by a superior private that came
from a unit other than the Brigade re and Private Shimura.

' 37. Q. How far apart were the prisonsrs tied?

i‘l" I believe it was sbout two meters.

I| 38, Q. Where were you standing im relation to the prisoners wheam they were
!!Mﬂ-d‘l

i!;mt-lnuatlhmtmmr. !
|
|
!

1o \

; |




' 39. Q. Bow far away from the prisoner om the left were you?

A, I was standing about three meters from the prisoner om the left. I was
standing in a position that I eould see clearly what happemed.

&0, G Why do you wear glasses?

The judge advocate objected to this question on the ground that it was
incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustairmed.

A, I was told by the doctor that I was near sighted and these lenses were
prescribed for me.

kl. Q. How long have you worn these glasses?
A. About three years.

' b2, Q. Did you wear these glasses at the time of the execution?
A, Tea,

k3. Q. Ewnldmm‘l'.
A. 8ixty-two. ;

' blse Qs Tou testified that you received orders from Captain Higashigi te
axscute these people. Ihmdidrmmtiﬂtm-nmm
' As In the office at Brigade Headguarters.

45, @« Who else was present when you received these orders?
A. I do not recall who was present, However, as the office was also used

as living quarters by the officers and the Commander of the Brigade, I
presume they were present. I also think there were some non-commissioned

officers present.

| hbe Qo Were these written or verbal unhrﬂ
| Ay Verbal orders,

The witness was duly warned.

The commission them, at 11:40 a.m., took a recess until 2:10 p.m., at
whisch time it reconvened.

Present:

I All the members, the judge advocates, the interpreters, the accused and
| Ms counsel, a7

i No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present. |

| The judge advocate introduced Robert Cldham, yeoman third class, U. 8.
|hﬂ,uﬂpﬂhr

| The reporter was duly sworn.




| Ite, Kimji, lieutenant colomel, Imperial Japmese Amy, the witness
| under examination when the recess was taken, entered. He was warmed that
| the oth previowsly teken was still binding and contimued his testimomy.

i (Cros s—examination contimmed.)

| A7. @ The orders you received that you testified about this merning, did
m:::mnmmmunmt
A, . :

| &8, Q. Did you selesct all the peopls to help you in the execution?
A, I only picked the two men from the Brigade Headquarters. .

k9. Q» What is the name of the accused in this case?
A, Taksno,

50. Q. Was he a member of the Brigade Headquarters?
A, No, he was not a member of the Brigade Headquartere,.

Beither the judge advocate nor the accused desired further to axamine
this witnees.

The commdssion did not desire to examine this witness,
. The witness made the following statement:

I received the orders for the carrying ocut of the execution from Adjutant

Higashigi. 'The order did not come directly from the Brigade Commander

although we lived in the same guarters. m-mmummunml

| was friction in our relations. I was scheduled to returm to Japan as a
| school imstructor in August 194k4. I do not know why I was not returned,
| Not so long ago Okomoto, a witness, testified in this mﬂﬂ;ﬁd it
to him that there were more than four bayometeers, In faet I believed that
there were five or six others mixed up in the bayoneting. wounld
state that this is absclutely false. The execution was carried out
ceramony. Okomoto also testified that one of the prisoners moved his head
three times after he was bayoneted. This is also false, I swear that both
priscners bled out of their mouths as scon as the prisoners were bayoheted
in the chest. I have nothing further to add.

i

3
s

The witness was duly warmed and withdrew.
A witness for the prosecution emtered and was duly sworn.
i Examined by the judge advocate:

Q. ©State your name and rank?
Inperial Japanese Amy, Superdor Private Kido, Matsutaro.

it. Are you presently confined on Guam?
I,

Q. If you recognize the accused in this case will you point him out
name . him?

gy rr rr




The accused stood when pointed out and them resumed his seat.

| A+ Sergeant Takano,

&. Q WMnt-m,nnmmmumumMJmnth

lpnlnlnu’!

Yes.

| 5. Q. When did you arrive on Chichi Jima?

A, In July of 19Gk.

6. Q. When did you leave Chiechi Jima?
A, On the second of Janmary 1946.
Q.

Ts While stationed on Chichi Jima to what unit were you attached?
A, Brigade Headquarters. .

8. Q. While at the Brigade Headquarters did you ever have the ocecasion to

| see any prisoners of war?

A, I saw some.

9. Q. When did you see these?
A, I do mot remember the day and momth.

m.g. Hdma]mrihmmmmhimoruhaﬂnnpﬂmmrorm?
A, have,

11, 4 When did this take place?
A, I think it was in the begimning of August 194k.

12, Q. At this time was one, nrlnﬂtnnmprhm-rmeutld?
A. Two were axecuted.

13. Q. Will you tell the commission what took place at the scene of the

| execution as you saw it?
| A¢ I saw two prisoners who were tied down to stakes. I remesber one

| prisoner was tall and one was shorter. They were blindfolded, I remsmber

Colenel Ito bowing toward the Imperial Palace, after this the execution was

E

Q. How was this exwouticn econducted?
They were plerced by bayomets and beheaded by a sword.

e Qe hwpmﬂdmmﬂnmthpﬂmﬂthwr
I saw two persons,

F

rFL r

16, Q. hmhﬂthn-unrt-hlmmthﬂmm
A, They were two nen-commissioned officers.

' 17. Q. Do you know the nmme of either or both of these non~commissioned

of ficers?
A: I remsmber the ranks of Corporal and Sergeant, but I do not know their

[LAREE -




| 18, Qo Did you partiecipate in this bayoneting yourself?
| As I dide

| 19, Q. Were you the first persom to bayomet the prisemer or had someons

else preceded you?
| Ao I remember a Sergeant pierced before me,

| 20, Q. Do you know the name of that Sergeant?
A, I remesber him in this court room.

| 21, Q. Do you see this Sergeant present in this court teday?

How many times did you see Sergeant Takano bayonet this priscoer?
remember it was two or three times.

you recall the natiomality of this prisoner?
not know the nationality. I remember that one was tall and one

¥
st 2 HF
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the color of the skin of these two men?
like foreigners.

say they were white men, black men, yellow men or what

®
F
]
2

color?
A, The tall ome bad black hair but the shorter one had, I think, a reddish
eolor hair.
27. Q. Do you recall the color of their skin?
28. Q. Inuruumhﬂmwtr:l.nlginnt-ndthurnrhﬂ-hqrthm
men that you saw executed? .
A, I do not kmow.
29. Q. Inutuumhwmﬁthunrhﬂharthu-mdmmhiq .
to justify being executed? |
| |
| 30. Q. Private Kido, do you know why either of these men were executed er
| what was the purpose that brought about their executions?
| A I do mot kmow,

rp
e
1
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4« Was the persom bayoneting the priscner whom you saw, was he between
prisoner and you?

I was standing at a point between about twelve to sighteen feet back of
ere the prisoner was tied and about the middle of both of them.

Q. When were these priunu"' hlinﬂoldnd? LT
Before they were executed.

ry argp'

3. Q. Were they blindfolded whem you were at the scens of the execution?
A, TYes,

35. Q. Were you the first to bayomet this priscner that you bayonsted?
A. I was ordered after the non-commissicned officer was ordered to do .so.

36. Q. Who ordered you to bayonet the prisoner?
A. BSergeant Takano,

37. Q. Who ordered you to attend the scene of the execution?
| Ay It was the order of the Brigade Commander.

38, Q. Was this a written order?

A. I was ordered by the head of the orderlies. He sald it was the order of
| the Brigade Commander and to go to Kominato and receive instructions from
Colonel Ite.

39. Q. Did you go to the seeme of the execution alone?
A, I went with many people to the scene of the execution, but I went by
myself to Emminate.

kO, Q. At the scens of the exscution did Colonel Ito order Sergeant Takano

te plerce the prisoner?

A. Thers was a non-commissionsd officer standing in front of each prisoner

and Colonel Ito said: “Stad". L7

M. Q. Munhwmmnm-mn-m did you see him come
before the prisoner?
A, I saw him go to & point about four to five feet in front of the prisoner.

42, Q. Before that time did you know where Sergeant Takano was standing?
A. He was near that vieinity.

&3. Q. About how far was he?
| A, He was with the people whe were all linmed up.

khe Q. Was not Sergeant Takano hiding behind a crowd of people?
| Ay I think he was with everybody else.

| k5. Q. Who was he with?
| Ay I do met remember, but I remsmber that he was together with the rest in

s group.

Neither the judge advecate nor the accused desired further to examine
: this witness. |

The camnission did not desire to examine this withess,




1.
A

2,
A,

3.
| A

| &
A,

Se
A,

6,

The witness said he had nothing further to state,
The witness was duly warmed and withdrew,
Frederick A. Savory, was called as a witness for the prosecution and

| duly swom.

Q. BState your name.
Frederick A, Savory.

g. Are you presently employed on Ouam?
a8,

Q. If you recognise the accused state as whom?
Sergeant Takano.

Q. By whom are you employed on Cumm?
Commander Marianas.

Q. In what capacity?
Interpreter for War Crimes.

Q. In your capacity as interpreter for the Cammander Marianas de you

have in your possession an original statement in Japanese submitted to Major

ShalTer by the accused?

A,

7.
A

II.
A,

Fe
A,

A,

A,

| A

I do,

@ Do you have in your possession a translation of that statement?
I do,

Q. By whom was that statement writtem?
It was written by Sergeant Takano,

Q. By whom was it translated?
I translated it myself.

10, Q. Was anyons present with the accused when he wrote this statement
who eould speak to him and be understood by him?

No.

11. Q. Were you present when this statement was submitted by the accused
to Major Shaffer?

Yes.

| 12, Q. Were any promises made to the accused or threats to induce him to
| give this statement?

No.

The statements' of the accused, Sergeant Takano, Masayoshi, Impsrial
| Japanese NMavy in Japanese and the English translatiom thereof, were

| submitted to the accused and to the commission, and by the judge advecate
| offered in evidence,

e

iz‘rz’
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[ The accused objected to the admission of this evidence on the following
| grounds:

|
| We object to this statement of the accused being received into evidence.
| Nowhere in this document is there any evidence or does it appear that the

| accused was ever accorded the rights of a defendant, Nowhere can we find

| that Section 734(c), Naval Courts and Boards was complied with. It is

! very prejudicial to the rights of this accused.

Nowhere does it appear in tinis statement that he was ever notified by a
|| so-called senior member of the Board of Investigation of the gist of the
|| evidence intended to implicate him nor that he was instructed that he would
| be accorded the rights of the accused for a court martial; namely the
| right to have counsel.

Such an accused does have the right to refuse to answer incriminating
or degrading questions. This right was never explained to this accused.
The offering of this document into evidence will result in the accused
being made to testify against himself. This is strictly at wariance with
the fifth and sixth amendments of the american Constitution. We maintain
that to admit this document into evidence will be most prejudicial to
the rights of the accused in this case, and we object to this statement
being received into ewvidence.

The judge advocate replied.

The commission was cleared.

The commission was opened. All parties to the trial entered.

lo witnesses not otherwise comnected with the trial were presant.

Tie commission announced that the objection of the accused was not
sustained.

The statement of Sergeant Takano, Masayoshi, Imperial Japanese Army, in
Japanese and the English translation thereof were so received in evidence
and are appended marked "Exhibit 1" and "Exhibit 2" respectively.

| 13. Q. I ask the witness to read the English translation of Takano's
(| statement.

The witness read the Inglish translation of the statement of Takano,
Lasayoshi, Sergeant, IJA, copy appended marked "Exhibit 2",

| An interpreter read the original statement in Japanese of lergeant Takano,

|| Masayoshi, IJA, appended marked "Exhibit 1".
The accused did not desire to cross—examine this witness.

The judge advocate did not desire further to examine this witness.




The commission did not desire to examine this witness, i
The witness was duly warned and resumed his seat as an interpreter.

Thes prosecution rested.

The accused at 3:25 p.m., requested an adjournment until 9:00 a.m.

tomorrow morning, Tuesday, October 22, 1946, to complete the preparation
|of his defense.

The commission announced that the request of the accused was granted.

The commission then, at 3:25 p.m., adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Tuesday,
October 22, 1946.




United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Marianas,

Guam, Marianas Islands.
Tuesday, October 22, 1946,

The commission met at 98207 a.m,
Pregents

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Robinson, U, 3, Navy,
Colonel Adolph L, Ramon, Army of the United States,
Colonel lass G, Pamplin, Army of the United States,
Lieutenant Colonel Adolph Zuber, U, S, Marine Corps

er Ramon J, Wallenborn Corps, U, 8, invy,
Commander Vance O, Smith, U, §, Naval Reserve, members, and
Lieutenant Edward L. Field, U, 8, Naval Reserve, and
Lieutenant Fredric T, Suss, U, S, Naval Reserve, judge advocates.
Vivian Kilner, civilian, reporter,
The accused, his counsel and the interpreters.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

The record of proceedings of the first day of the trial was read and
approved,

The defense offered no evidence.

The accused read a written statement in his defense in Japanese,
appended marked "D",

An interpreter read the statement of the accused in Emglish, appended
marked "E¥,

The judge advocate read his opening argument, appended marked "F',

The commission then, at 9355 a.m,, took a recess until 1017 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Pragent!

A11 the members, the judge advocates, the reporter, the interpreters,
the accused and his counsel,

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

| Mp, Ito, Kenro, a Japanese counsel for the accused, stated that inasmuch
' as the Japanese counsel for the accused were familiar with the opening

| argument of the judge advocate, the aceused waived the right to have the

' opening argument of the judge advocate read im Japenese in open court.

| My, Maganao Toda, a counsel for the accused, read a written argument
I:.'I.n Japanese, appended marked "G",

|} =19 =
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An interpreter read the argument of Mr, Toda in English, appended
marked "H",

¥r, Kenro Ito, counsel for the amccused, read a written argument in
Japanese, appended marked "I®, |

An interpreter read the argument of Mr, Ito in English, appended
marked "J",

|
Martin E, Carlson, Commander, U, S, Naval Reserve, a counsel for the |
accused, read a written argument appended marked "K", |
|
|

The commission announced that in response to the request of the accused
as embodied in this argument, it would determine the sentence in accordance
with the authority granted to it by the precept. I

The accused waived the right to have the argument of Commander Carlsecn
read in Japanese in open court.

.L.Thu judge advocate read his written closing argument, appended marked

The accused waived the right to have the closing argument of the judge
advocate read in Japanese in open court.

The trial was finished.
The commission was cleared.

The judge advocates were recalled and directed to record the following
findinge?

The specification of the charge proved.

And that the accused, TAKANO Masayoshi, Sergeant, Imperial Japanese Army,
is of the charge guilty.

The commission was opened. 411 parties to the trial entered.

Robert Uldham, yeoman third class, U. S, Navy, reporter. ,

Ho witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

The commission announced its findings.

The commission announged that it was prepared to hear evidence in mitigati

Toda, Masanao, a counsel for the accused, was duly sworn as a witness
for the accused,

Examined by the judge advocate?!

1. Q, State your name,
| A, Toda, Masanao,

Examined by the acoused?
|2, Q, Are you a defense counsel in this case?

|4, Yes, I an.

I
|
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3. Q Do you have certain documents in your possession that you wish to
introduce inte evidence?

| A+ I have two documents, the originals of which are im Japanese.

ke Q. Are these documents eviddnce of character for the defendant, eCck
Takano, for mitigation purposes?
A, Tes, .

5¢ @ Have these documents been translated into English?
A. TYes, they have been translated into English, -

6. Q Do you wish to offer these documents in evidence in behalf of

| Sergeant Takano,

A, Tes,

Two decuments in Japanese and the English translations thereof, were
submitted to the judge advocate and to the commission and by the aceused

| offered in evidemce. There being mo objection they were so received. i

| T« Q. W1l you read the first of these two documents im Japanese?

| As I shall read the affidavit of Sergeant Kishimoto, Masao, Imperial

Japanese Ammy.

' mariced "Exhibit A", - -
8. Q. 'mm;uutumdufun-twm-nhm

The witness read in Japanese the affidavit of Sergeant Kishimoto, ll.un,i
Imperial Japanese Amy, appended marked "Exhibit 3“. |

An interpreter then read the English translation of "Exhibit 3", appended
|

A. I shall read the affidavit of Captain Nakano, Masani, Imperial Japanese
Ay,

The witness read in Japanese the affidavit of Captain Nakano, Masani,
Imperial Japanese Amy, appended marked "Exhibit 5",

An interpreter them read the English translation of "Exhibit 5% appended
marked "Exhibit 6. . 5

The judge advocate did mot desire to cross-examine this witness.
The acoused did not desire further to examine this witness.

The camission did not desire to examine this witness.

The witness resumed his seat as a coumsel for the acoused.

The commission was clesared to consider the sentence of the accused.




The judge advocates were recalled and directed to record the sentence
of the commission as follows:
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Colonel, ﬁ the United Et-at-eu, Member,
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L)LMW
AMON J. (WALLENBORN, |
c » Dental Torps, J.S. Navy, Member, |
| VANCE 0, :
1

? Gumm:ndozgip oS Ea?al ar;jL Member,
| IEID

ILisutenant, U.S. Hivnl Rnuarvn, Judge Advocate,

| St !S>

Lieutemant, U.S. Naval Reserve, Judge Advocate,
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The coomission was opened, All parties to the trial emntered,
The commission them read and promounced the sentence to the accused,

I The commissiom, having no more cases before it, adjourned to await the
|| action of the conveming authority.

OBINSON, i

5 N |

EDWARD L, FIELD,
Lieutenant, U, 3. Naval Reserve, Judge Advocats.

‘}Aﬂ£ﬁak -r‘SHASé

FREDRIC T. SUSS,

Iieutenant, U, S. Naval Reserve, Judge ﬁdvooatT.
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STATEMENT OF TAKANO MASAYOSHI,

When I reached the conscription age, on the 10th of January, 1928, I
was assigned to the Kofu Regiment where I received military training for
the defense of our fatherland, and was demobilized and returned home on the
9th of July, 1929.

. In July, 1937, the Sino-Japanese Incident broke ocut, I was called

on September 5th, and served for our country in Central China for two years
and a half, and, after that, I engaged 1n agriculture, But on December 8,
1941, a war broke out between the United States and Japan. I was called
again on March 6, 1944, and served as the leader of & squad of the third
company of the 307th Independent Infantry Battalion,

However, I was very unhappy. On Chichi Jima, I was forced to obey
| 811 orderse, I was 7iven orders and executed a priscner on Chichi Jima,
| and now I am spending my days in the stockade at Guam Island,

I can not understand how my superior officers on Chichl Jima could
make it possible for me to be accused of murder because they ordered me to
carry out their orders.

| Anything which I did in connection with this execution was done becanse
of battalion orders received from 2nd lieutenant TSUCHIDA. I had been
trained to obey without questioning, and, therefore, could do nothing but
4 ocbey, We soldiers in the Jupanese Army knew nothing but strict obedience
|| to orders. Anyone, who lknows the Japanese Army will readily understand

|| that when a Japanese soldier is given an order he must obey it.

In connecticn with this incident; I had no will to ldll any oprisoner,
What I d4id was not done wilfully; there was no premsditation or malice on my
| part. I blindly carried out an order with only the idea that to do mo 12
| the right thing. I trust impliecitely my supericr officers and never for
| one moment doubted but that their orders were to be carried out,

h I never pave anyone orders at the scene of the execution and tried the
best way I lnew to avoid becoming a particlpant in thls execution, I was a
| most unwilling partiecipant and observer in this executicn,

We were ordered to attend bayonet drill, snd then, when assembled, cer-
tain of us were ordered to bayonet, HNone of us knew why we were ordered
or why we did what we did on that day.

That day was & most unhappy day for us, and it ia difficult to under-
stand why we four, out of all the others, were selected. Now, we are to
be punished for carrying out orders.

With our limited education and a soclal order different than you
Americans, we hope you will understand how unfortunate is our lot, we who
| were selected by officers to carry out orders. I ask your leniency and
| understanding.

I am always very anxious about my family. My famlly is poor and engages

AN




in agriculture. I have an aged, weak father of 68 years old, my wife and
two children., There is no one in my family to work now, It will be very
difficult for them to sustain their living without me, I am afraid that they
will starve to death if I become a war criminal,

I beg your kind considerations concerning what I have just mentioned
and deal leniently with me,

TAKANO MASAYOSHI,

| I certify the above to be a true and complete translation to the best
| of my ability of the original statement written in Japanese by TAKAINO,
| Masayoshi,

' JJ%.:?” ;
! Mmmﬁmi

Lieutenant (jg), USHR.
Interpreter,




OPENING ARGUMENT FOR THE FROSECUTION
DELIVERED BY
LIEUTENANT EDWARD L. FIELD, USNR

In summing up this case the prosecution feels that the case has been most simpl
and the pertinent facts are very clear to all parties of this trial, We found it
only necessary to bring two witnesses before this comnission in order to prove the =
charge and specification, and we have corroborated this with the confession uf the
accused,

I wmish to consider each allegation of the specification and show how each n.l.hg-
ation of the specification has been proved,

The first allegation of the specification names the accused, Takano, llmajruhi.. R
i We have seen two witnesses identify the accused by name and identify him as a

"y participant in this erime, and there can be no doubt that the accused in this court
is Masayoshi Takane.

:-: ::‘i
i 3 The commission has heard Colonel Ito state that two of the bayoneteers that 4
Lc-' were supplied fraom units other than the Brigade Headquarters were petty officers, *
§ The witness, Kido, stated that SBergeant Takano bayoneted just ahead of lLim, This i
clearly established that the allegation "then a sergeant", is substantially proved &2
by the evidence and the additional allegation "Imperial Japﬂnﬁsu Armmy" has been ' ’E
y
4
i

also proved,

.Concerning the allegation "attached to the 30Tth Battalion" we observe that
~Colonel- Ito has teatified that two of the bayoneteers other than those he sunplied
himself, were from other units of the First Mixed Brigade, and that he heard
they were from the 307th Battalion, That is the only evidence that this man was :
Irom the 307th Battalion, but in the absence of any rebuttal on the part of the
accused, the assumption is that he was fram the 307th Battalion, and therefore this

gn allegation is proved. ‘
- Colonel Ito testified that units of the First Mixed Brigade other than the
B Brigade Headquarters supplied two of the executioners and it follows that if Takane J*{
E-_ . was attached to the 307th Battalion he was likewise attached to the First Mixed St
Q:.L Brigldﬂ- "':-;
';'1 The allegation "military installations of the Imperial Japanese Armud Forces, " ::i

is likewise proved by the testimony of the witnesses, Colonel Ito and Private Kide, T,
in which they show all parties participating in this crime including the accused, Taid
were Japanese military personnel,

ek

AR " From the testimony of these witnesses that the crime occured on Chichi Jima, ]
the allegation "Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands" is proved, )

", e.while so serving at said military installations of the Imperial Japanese
Armed Porces, Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands,.,.". Each of the witnesses identified ,;_'_'f'
Takano and onc of tham described exactly his part in this eriue, and we have seen J '
that this man was attached to the 307th Battalics, therefore he was serving at t-hlr )
- said military installations, Fiagd




The allegation "acting jointly" is proved when it is shown by the evidence
submitted by the prosecution's witnesses that the accused and the persons hereafter -
in the specification participated together in the carrying out of this crime,
3 accused, as well as the other participants, were all aware of the part they were
«portraying in the carrying out of this unlawful performance and the conduct of
each is but as a unit of the entire plan., The deeds of each of the participants in
order to carry out this execution were but an integral part of the over-all schems =
to execute this victim, Each was dependant upon the other in order that the final
consummation of this plan to murder the victim would take place, The allegation .
Macting jointly" is therefore proved beyond a reasonable doubt,

Colonel Ito has told of his part in this atroeity and he testified that he
received orders from Captain Higashigi to execute the prisoners of war., Captain
Y- Ikawa has been mentioned in the confession of the accused who stated Ikawa directed
! him to participate, Shlmura was one of the bayoneteers selected by Ito and his
=articipation in the crime is correcborated by the witness Kido,

As to the allegation "and other persons unlmown" - it is not necessary for the
prosecution to prove all parties to this crime, It is sufficient when the accused
is adequately informed of the persons participating in order that he might prepare
his defense, and it is not necessary that the prosecution prove all parties who
may have been involved in this crise,

The allegation "in pursuance of a common intent" means that the accused mid the
other persons mentioned in the specification with whom he is charged as acting
jointly, were carrying out the same over—all plan when they murdered this victim,

¢ i N b

A1l the evidence shows that the participants were aware that the purpose underlying |
thelir actions was the bayoneting and the subsequent beheading of the victim, The :i
actions of the accused with the aforementioned other participants were designed to. o5
see that this execution did take place as they fully intended it should. All these &
parties therefore intended to do but one deed, and that was the executiocn of the
: victim., It is evident that this was the common i.tent of all of the participants v
i in the orime, *
|LI '__!'1
I "On or about 7 August 1944" is the date we allege the exscution toock place. Y.
4 Both witnesses testified that the execution took place in the beginning of August ‘5'4':
1944, It is not necessary to prove the specific date, so long as we prove within R

s a reasonable limit of time that the execution took place as alleged. This evidence
1s sufficient to prove the alleged "on or about 7 August 1944V,

The evidence shows that the crime did take place on Chichi, Jima, Bomin Islands,

| The-year 1944 shows that a state of war did exist between the United States of
1 America, its allies and dependencies, and the Japanese Empire, Further, we asked i~
he commission to take judicial notice of the fact that during the entire year B 171
1944 a state of war did exist between the Unitad States Government and the he
Japanese Empire, T
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Now we come to the most important part of the specification = the technical
terms used to describe the murder, First of these is ™:ilfully", "Wilfully" is
defined in Bouvier's Law Dictimery ag "in an indictment charging a wilful ki -
it means intentional and not by accident." Can the accused claim that the vietim
was killed by accident or by mistale? The answer is emphatically no, The
intended to bayonet this specific victim and he did just exactly that, t.h-n.fm

wilfully participated in this crime,

The termn feloniously is a technical word used in an indictment for a felony a
it has the equivocal connotation of purposefully or unlawfully, Did the accused .'
}urposely intend to bayonel the victim? All of the prosecution's evidence indicates N
that he most certainly did purposely bayonet this prisoner, fully cognizant of ilut
he was doing. Can the accused for a moment claim that he did not know that the j'_f.
bayoneting of a defenseless and entirely innocent prisoner of war without any L
Justifiable cause was not unlawful? The answer a;ain is most emphatically in the
negative,

A 4'..

"With premeditation and malice aforethought" = Premeditation is defined as f
"a design to commit a crime or to do some otheract before it is actually done", -
The accused knowing that he is to bayonet the prisorer well in advance of the actual i
deed is shown to have thus fcrmed the design to do so prior to the actual carrving
4 out of the deed. The term "malice aforethought" in the description of murder<does
i:" not imply delibaration or the lapse of a period of considerable time between the
~ _ malicious intent and the actual execution of that intent, but rather denotes e
purpose and design in @ontradistinction to accident and mischance, Malice in the =
law does not necessarily mean a malignant spirit, a malignant intention to produce
X a particular evil. If a man intentionally does wrongful act, an act which he knows
" is likely to injure another, that in the law is malice", The prosecutionls ol
% evidence clearly shows that the accused, Takano, intentiocnally bayoneted the -
prisoner knowing that by so doing the victia would die and it is this intentional
doing of that wrongful act that proves beyond all reasonable doubt these technical
words of the specification are proved against him. vl

WEE

—

The allegation "without justifiable cause" means that the acts of the accused
were done without his having ary legal right teo do it. Both witnessca for the ‘o
prosecution have testified that insofar as they knew, there was absolutely ne N
. Justification for the exeoution of this prisomer of war. All the prosecution's '
evidence shows that the accused was acting on no legal rights when he deliberately L
bayoneted this defenseless victim, el

gy

S
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_ We have asked Colonel Ito, who supervised this execution, and also the witness 0

£ Kido, insofar as they knew, was any trial given this prisoner of war, They both 8
have answered in the negative, That this victim was merely dragged out on a hillsié

and summarily killed is conclusively shown by the prosecutiocn's evidence, €

"Assault”" means the putting in fear of bodily harm or apprahamiun of immediate |
peril, The evidence shows that the wictia wus blindfolded and then tied to stakes
and even though he may not have been told wha fate was in store for him, he must =
have fully realiszed what was taking place under these circumstances, The unlawful
bayoneting of this prisoner of war clearly constitutes assault, e

HF 3'
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The piercing of the victims body by the bayonet fulfills the allegation "s

"Kil1" is a general term used for depriving of life and it is the contention =
of the prosecution that the -vidence clearly shows that th s victim was killed and
that the, defendant, Takano, as one of the participants in this crime, is either o
himself fully responsible, or jointly responsible with the others, for the death
of this American prisoner of wiur, It is entirely immaterial whetier Takano was the
sole cause of the execution or whether the other participantes with him aided in b
bringing about this execution, The defendant, Takano, participated in this crime =+ =
with the intention of deliberately executing the victim and this intent plus his b
overt act of bayoneting the victim places him in the position to be correctly

charged with this killing, and the evidence shows the victim did die as a result of =
the action of the accused, 3

Regarding the allegation "bayoneting with a fixed bayonet" — we have heard
Colonal Ito testify that he ordered the men to bayonet the prisconer with fixed
beyonets. A fixed bayonet is merely a bayonet on the end of a rifle,

Colonel Ito testified, as to "American:prisoner of war", that there was no ons
else on Chichi Jima execept Jrpanese other than these prisoners and he knew they
were American, Kido was unalle to give the nationality of the prisoner, but stated
that he looked like a foreigner to him, This evidence clearly establishes the
prima facie allsgation that this victim was an American rrisoner of war,

It is the prerogative of the convening authority to allege or not to allege
the name of the victim. It is never necessary to prove the name of the victim in
order to establish the charge of murder,

Both witnesses testified that the victim was a prismer and wes in the custody
of the armed forces of Japan,

The defense objected to the allegation of the specification "thify is viclation
of the laws and customs of war", in that it did not specifically state what law
and what custom of war had been violated, This camnission properly overruled that
objection., This allegation is sufficiently clear to give the accused reasonable
notice of the law he is charged with violating. My colleague will amplify these
points, but I will briefly state that the accused has violated among others Article
23(c) of the Hague Convention of 1907, and Article 2 of the Geneva Prisoner of War
Convention of 1929,

The case against the accused, Takano, as shown by the prosecution's evidence
1s that Takano knowingly participated in an unlawful act and that he intended te
do just what he in fact did do. It is the further contention of the prosecution
that all the allegations of the specification againct the accused, Takano, are
proved beyond a ressonable doubt and that the charge of murder is sustained, and

that the accused stands before this comanission guilty as charged.
M‘ F ¥

Lisutenant, USNR
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the prisocner wilfully and unlawfully,

s ARGUMENT FOR THE ACCUSED
Delivered by
MR, TODA, KASANAO

Since my colleagues will present sufficient arguments I am going to make
my atatement as conclse as possible, 3

The specification of the charge "murder" states that TAKANO, Masayoshi,
then a sergeant, Imperial Japanese Army,,., did, on or about 7 August, 1944,...
wilfully, feleniously, with premeditation and malice aforethought, without :
Justifisble cause, and without proper trial or other due process, assault, !
strike and kill, by bayoneting with a fixed bayonet, an American priscner of
war,,,.this in violation of the laws and customs of war,

The first point which I can not but suspect is whether he bayoneted the
prisoner “wilfully and feloniously"., If we presume that he did bayonet the
priscner, we persist in our belief that 1t was neither wilful nor felonious be-
cause 2nd lieutenant TSUCHIDA, the leader of his platoon, ordered him to bayonet
the prisoner and lieutenant colonel ITO also ordered it a2t the scene of the
exeoution, It is evident that he bayoneted the prisoner against his om will,
And pe maintain to the Memberas of the Commission that TAKANO did not bayonet

In the second place, there is the point concerning whether or not the
defendant TAKANO, had any premeditation or malice aforethought., On this peint
I am positive that the defendant TAKANO, had no premeditation or malice afore-
thought in bayoneting the priscner, The defendant is but a mere sergeant and
premeditation means to plan., I believe it is well known by the memberas of the
commission vhether or not o mere sergeant can plan the execution of a priscner
of war,

Next i1s the question whether or not TAKANO, had any melice aforethought to-
ward the prisoner. Tho defendant TAKAYO saw the prisoner on the day of the
exeoution for the first time, It was not necessary and there wos no reason for
TAKANO to hold any malice cforethought for c prisoner whom he saw for the first
time, upon arriving at the scene according to orders, And, on this point alse,
we maintain te the members of the commission that TAKANO, did not-have any
premeditation or malice aforethought.

Third, there is the statement in the charge, "without justifiable cause, and
without proper trial or other due process™, I sincercly believe that the
commission is well acquainted through the many cases tried before it concerning
the organizatirn, orders and the characteristiocs of the Japanese Armed Forces,
How can it be known to a non-commisaioned officer with such a low rank as
sergeant, whether there was a justifiable cause, or whether, there was a proper
trial, or other due prosedure, No! There is absclutely no way of knowing this.
Moreover the orders in the Japanese Apmed Forces leave no room for judging right
or wrong and becouse of this the defendont TAKANO, did not know vhether or not
there was o justifiable cause, or a proper trial, or due procedure. Contrary

g (1)




to this, I believe sincerely that he may have thought there was a justifiable
csuse,

The witness, ITO, Kikuji, has tostified, in answer to tho question of the
prosecution, "Did these prisoners have a trial?" as follows:."As for myself I
do not know of any such thing, Personally I believed he had conmitted & orime
and paturally was to be exeouted." Even ITO who holds the high rank of a
1lioutenant colonel in the Army did not know -hether there was a trial or not,
On the other hand he belioved that there must have been a justifiable cause for
the execution, Can there be any doubt that the defendant TAKANO believed
thnt there was a justifinble cause for the execcution of the prisoners?

The oducetion of Sergeant TAKANO is too low to take the above points inte

consideration, They do not tench such things in the primary schools in Japan,

The charges and specification conclude thnt the above acts were in violation of
RE. the laws and customs of wer, With his limited educction there is no way for him
2 to kmow this, According to the Jopanese Criminal Code, Article 38, there is a
; rule that: "Acts with no intent to commit a crime shall not be punished, " That
B, punishment shall not be administered to acts committed without eriminal intent is
a major principle in the eriminal codes of the various nations of this world,
e And this is the way International Iaw should be. To administer punishment for 4
actions, done without criminal intent and in ignorance of the law is, I beliove, , =
a gross miscerringe of justice, There is = rule in the Jepenese Criminal Code, P
Article 35, that:"For actions done by righteous duties or by laws shall not be E
punished.” A good exnmple of this is the cese of the exocutioner in conducting
an execution., Similar to the actions in this case actions done on orders shall
fall into the same categery as the above axample.

-

The specification reads as follows: Vagting iointly with ITO, Kiluji,
lieutenant colonel, IJA, HIGASHIGI, Sgiji, Captain, IJA, IKAVA, Shigeo, first
lieutenant, ITA, SHIMURA, Hisao, Lecding Private, IJA, ond other persons unknown,
in pursuence of o common intent", There has been no evidence presented by the
prosecution on this point., But it is wvery clear thot the defendont,Sergeant
TAKANO, did not have any common intent with any of these people.

It has not been proved beyond a reasonable doubt by the evidence of the
varions vwitnesses presented by the prosecution in this ccurt that it was
definitely the defendant TAKANO, who is in court today, who bayoneted a prisomer
of war, I believe tho evidence presented by the prosecution is insufficient

evidence,

Having argued roughly on the above points I zsk that the commission find the
defendant not 1ty. :
22 October 194 MR, TODA, MASANAO,

I certify the above to be a true and complete translation of the original

argument in Japanese of TODA, MASANAO, to the best of my, ?bd‘flity.
DERICK ?.m‘

Lieutenant, (jg), USNA.
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. ARGUMENT FOR THE ACOUSED
Deliversd by
¥r, TT0, KEMRO,
Your Honor, The President and Members of the Commission: :
558 o orine sgafset Dusaity $0 1y Pespenstbliity ioce Wite these ate AT

ted by their superiors, and it is alse eruel to condemn those to heavy punishe .
who do not know the law. -

2K

- - Since 's visit to Uraga, Ja shed her feudal thoughts and began anew as .
e a modern state, However, since 1928, the Japanese militalista planned to dewelop :
8 their country by their invasion of Manchuria, China and other various dis

o Asia, and millions of men who loved peace were deprived of their liberty and were

S to death, Though they were called, "soldiers", they vere, in reality, nothing
l{ but pitiable slaves, In fact, Japan conld not yet sweep away her feudalism, And M
0 her militaristic adventure conflicted with the United States' policy in Asia L8
namely, the Communication of John Hay, the Stimson Dootrine, eto, Professor aﬁ,.- T
s wold of Yale University and Professor Eldridge of Columbia University have made, .
& in detail, an excellenht report about that, :

e As the var went on, the Japanese Armed Forces came to be defeated everywhers, and

5 since gu fall of Saipan, meny Japanese troops isolated on islands in the Pacifio

1% Ocean busied themselves in recovering their losses ~hich made many more so'diers
the viotims of unreascnable orders. If the orders were unjust they had no means

. by which to refuse them, nor were they at liberty to stand against these orders.

I maintain that this commission must not ’ay heavy responsibility upon these
migarable soldiers who had no liberty., However, according to the Potedam Declare-
tion, the acta of these soldiers heve come to be tried at the International War
Tribupals. Since these soldiers have been very poorly educated, they are quite
ignorant of the existance of the laws which honor liberty. So they were very often
at a disadventage,

On August 21, 1945, in the afternoon, & Japanese soldier bore witness at the
International War Tribunal at Guam Island, He did not know these laws, Therefors,
in spite of being warned at the beginning of the.questioning that he did not need =~
to testify about anything that was disadvantageous to himself, he related his erime, = =
being uncapable of understanding the warning, He was charged afterward and une :
fortunately has come to attend this same court as an accused, This poor soldier
is the defendant TAKANO, sergeant, Imperial Japanese Army, who is now before you,

&
|?J
i
'

I hope this commission will not deal with this matter as a funny story of this
eourt, but will eonsider it as a sad court-drama mcted by a man who is a pitiable
Japanese soldier, a victim of war, and igoorsnt of law, and that this commission
will be especially careful in apnlying laws to this ocase. I think, the great -
writers such as Tolstoy, Dostooveky or Thomas Mann would have - thé greatest syme.”. =
;plthy!wfm,thlv‘oﬂ-uftrl.giam,udmuldhn-nﬂthnlmdm \

- on this sergeant,

"r(1)




i

thaetow

—

8 g5
-

-
At "':“‘f'.'...
- ¢ -

e

=

| captain HIOASHIGI, first lieutenant

. - P

Mo v

My argument concernihg this case will be divided in three parts:
1. On the charge, :

umummpumamumauﬁum,uum
that the defendant TAEANO, jointly with lieutenant oolonel ITO, -
i:wu leading private SHIMIRA, and other
persons unknown, npn'-muot:minhnt did, cn or about 7 August, 1944,
assault, nhihtdhllhrhrm%ﬂthﬂndh;mh,mlmim
m-rutwlr,ihuinﬂulathnu!thihﬂmdmmnfm.

However, the defendant TAKANO was not in eoncert with their actions, Of
mu, the defendant TAKANO is responsible for bayonsting an American priscner
of war, but there are no laws or customs of war which regulate his responsibility, °
As I already made an objeotion on the 21st of this month concerning this point,
I will not discuss this matter again, I think it possible to consider that two _
conventions concerning prisoners of vwar, namely the 1907, Hagua Convention and the
1927 Geneva Convention had no international wvalue from the standpoint of inter-
national laws, Frobahbly, they were not included in the last u-tmiutinn from

- Japan to the United States in 1941,

2, On his intent. ' ’

The charge states that the defendant TAXANO committed the action of this
case, wilfully, feloniously, without justifiable caunse, and rithout proper trials
or other dus vprocess.

But the defendant TAKANO received, about seven p.m., on the Sth of August,
1944, the order of the Battalion Commander to execute the prisaoner from Second
lieutenant TSUCHIDA, then the leader of the third platoon of the 3rd Company of
the 307th Independent Infantry Bottalion, which was then st Fukurosawa, Chichi
Jima, TAXAFO went to the scene of execution and bayoneted with fixed bayonet,
lawfully and with good faith, according to the direction of lieutenant colonel
ITO, in the presence of thirty officers and soldiers, As the defendant TAKANO
had received very little education, he vas certain that the oxecution of the
prisonera et Nakayame Pass was legal, Therefore, the defendant TAKANO had no
eriminal intont, and ought not to be guilty.

According to the statement of lieutenant colonel ITO, the witnese in this
case, he /TN-IT0/ was informed of the order from Captain Higashigi with many
people present in the office of the Brigade Headquarters, He thought that the
order was quite a reasonable one and relayed it to his subordinates, It is clear
that sergeant TAKANO , on receiving this order, thought it just and legal, and
obeyed it in executing the priscner.

3. On his motive.

According to the charge, the defendant TAXANO committed tho action with
promeditation and malico aferethought, but the faot was that he only carried out
what he was ordored by Second Lieutenant TSICHIDA, tho leader of the 3rd Platoon,
He wont to the scenec of execution against his own will, and hesitated in front of
the prisoner., It is evidemt that he bayoneted the prisoner according to the order

" (2)
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of lieutonant colonel ITC, n.nﬂ it is aleo ovident, by the testimony of ITO, ﬂn!q ;
tho oxecution took place solemnly and carmnimh N

The defendant TAKANO was an agod sergeant of thirty-eight years. He
entored the Army in 1928, His family was poor and is engarod hmiﬂult-m.

I maintain that the defondant TAKANC, this pitiable scldier, did only : :
ocarry out what ho wos ordered, and that he had no evil mative, e

Bacause of those threo reasons which I have stated above, I assert that
tho defendant TAXANC is pot-guilty., And if he is found pguilty, I hope that he
will be dealt with leniently, maintaining that he was forced to oboy the order
and that he can be sympethized with in his motive

R, ITO, KEMRC,

I cortify the above to be a true and capplete translation of the originmal
argument of ITO, KEIRO, in Jopanese to tho best of my ability,

x ICK F TREHAYNE,
. ¢ L:Lautamnt- (3g) ,USHR, .

Interprotor,




CLOSING ARGUMENT FOR THE ACCUSED
DELIVERED BY
MARTIN E. CARLSON, COMMANDER, USNR

/i
23 Gentlemen of the Commission:
: According to military court-martial procedure the accused is afforded an .
spportunity to present an argument before subaitting his case to the court, r. AT
* Section 421 Navel Courts and Boards states that the defense should make a closing s
argunent in order to properly present their case not only for the benefit of the
court but also for the reviewing authority, We present the following argument, — ©

. 'The charge is alleged to be murder and yet as we said in our objections to the . -
charge and the specification it is alleged that the facts are in violation of the /=
laws and customs of war, The Commissien overruled our objections and found the
charge and specification in due form and technically correct, We are therefore =~ =
led to believe that the offense alleged is in violation of the laws and customs
of war,

We argue as do most international lawyers that the law of nations is binding
only on amre..m states, and mt on individun.'m

This accused, Bergeant Takano,' Masayoshi, can only be punished under the law
of Japan or of t-hﬁ law of the Unitad States, - A

We entered a plea in bar to the effect that this accused is not subject to the
court's jurlsdiction for a violation of the Hague Convention of 1907 or of the
Geneva Prisoners of War Convention of 1929, Article 405 of Naval Courts and )
Boards states that lack of jurisdictioh is a fatal defect and the plea may hn made

at anytime.

¥hen it comes to individuals who violate the laws and customs of war, internat- = =
ional law, such as the Hague Convention, provides neither courts or punishments.
The prosecution has failed to show that the law of nations permits the trial of ]
individuals or provides punishments for violations of the laws and custoas of war,

Legally we hold that the state and not the soldier is liable for viclations
of the laws of war, It is incumbent upon the prosecution to furnish legal
- authority and/or specific rvlings in order that this Comamission may hold otherwise.
L ;
 In order to properly prepare a defense we asked the Cﬂ:p,t:d.asim and the
prosecution to inform us as to what specific law or custom of war this accused is
charged with having violated, We are still without an answer although the prosee=
ution asked the Commission to take judicial notice of the Hague Convention of
1907, We objected to the Commission taking judicial notice of this Convention
but were overruled, If the accused is charged with having vioclated the Hague
Convention No, IV of 18 October 1907 then we cite Article 2 of this Convention <L
which provides that the provisioms do not apply if all of the belligerents are not' =0

"X 1~




parties to the Convention, Since neither Italy nor Bulgaria has ratified the 1907
Hagse Convention the accused claims that he is not bound by the Convention although

Japan did sign the Convention. i

If the accused is charged with having viclated the Geneva Prisoners of War
Convention of 1929 we point out that Japan has not ratified or fomally adhered
to it. The mere fact that Japan did through the Swiss Governuent agree to observe =8
the provisions of this Convention make no difference legally.

1

This case ie being tried by a judicial Commission end its findings must be
legal and the scntence imposed only if there has been a legal viclation or criue,
It is not clear to the accused upon what law the charge and the specification ia .
based, Mr, Justice Rutledge in the dissenting opinion in the Yemashita case sald:
"It is not our tradition for anyone to be charged with crime..., in language not 7
sufficient to inform him of the nature of the offense or to enable him to make

Fa
-‘;i defense, "
5

)1 The prosecution has falled to show that the accused, Sergeant Takano, Masayoal
acted jointly with Lieutenant Colonel Ito, Captain Higasiigi, First Lieutenant
5 Ikawa and/or Leading Private Shimura and other persons,

o~ ﬂt‘— : ;-'.-{!' :_.'-1'

Lieutenant Colonel Ito was put on the witness stand by the prosecution and he

o testified he did not select Sergeant Takano as one of the bayoneteers, This _
\F witness testified he was in charge of the execution and yet he failed to identify

Sergeant Takano as oie of the bayoneteers,

&
3 .
e g
& T e

P et my T

il We maintain that this witness did not by his testimony establish or prove

Lg the corpus delicti. Section 149 ¢f Naval Courts snd Boards states: "Corpus

i delicti, literally 'the body of substance of the crime", may be defined in its

. 1 primary sense as the fact that a crime has actually been committed, It is the
general fact without which there could be no.guilt, ... and must be established
before any one can be convicted of the perpetration of the alleged crime; other-
wise, the accused might be convicted of murder, for example, when the persaon
alleged to have been murdered was still alive....

I

i =
:"_dn-."i-i".-r\-’_'

Although Lieutenant Colonel Ito stated there was no one on Chichi Jima except
i Japanese it is common knowledge that there were other persons on Chichi Jima
b except Japanese Military, such persons were impressed as laborers and made to
g perform arduous labor, Is it not possible that it might have been one of these v
o that was executed in August 1944 since neither of the witnesses was able to i
identify the prisoners as Americans, We hold the corpus delicti has not been '

proved,

EFE SR

F We' also hold that the prosecution failed to show that the accused, Sergeant 4
i, Takano, did the act specified, The witness Superior Private Kido, who was /
L convicted of bayoneting an American prisoner of war-was asked by the prosecution X
to testify that he saw the accused, Sergeant Takano, bayonet a prisoner of war,
On the witness stand he said that he saw two persons bayonet, two non=commisslons:

.3.}_.
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officers, He remembered their ranks but not their names, Then he remembers a
sergeant piercing before he did, Finally he remembers that he is in the court

room and points him out, This is the kind of evidence that the prosecution is

asking the Commission to convict the accused of for murder of a prisoner of war
whose name is not even lmown, Kido who has already been ccnvicted and sentenced £
for this act comee before this court as a witness against the accused, Sergeant .
Takano, The accused in this case, Sergeant Takano, was a witness against Superior
Private Kido and Kido was convicted of murder, Is it not natural that Kido shonld
have a certain animus against the accused, Sergeant Takano, It is for the Commise
sion to consider this point in weighing the evidence, Kido admitted on cross-
axamination that he was 15 to 18 feet away from the prisoner when the prisoner

was bayoneted,

The prosecution, the United States of America, are ‘charging the accused with
having violated the Geneva (Prisoners of War) Convention of 27 July 1929 and thenm
v the prosecution violate this same Convention when they introduce into evidence a
written statement signed by the accused, Article 61 of this Convention states;
"o prigunur may be obliged to admit himself guilty of the act of which he is
accused",

- We objected to the statement of the accused being admitted into evidence because 2
the accused is thereby made to testify erainst himself, No person can be made (-
to testify against hinself, This is a right guaranteed by the Fifth Amendment

to our Constitution, The Sixth Amendment of this same Constitution of the United
States of America guarantees that in all criminal prosecutions the accused shall

have the assistance of counsel for his defense, This,he did not have when he was

made to sign the statement which went into evidence, Although this statement was
signed before Major Shaffer, U,S, Marine Corps, who designated himself as Senior

Member the statement or attached papers do not show that the accused was ever 4
accorded the rights of a defendant or the privileges of an interested party. ‘5
Section 734 Naval Courts and Boards also states: "A person granted the privileges ¥
of an interested party may be called as a witness, but, of course, can not be

required to incriminate himself,

The prosecution has stated that the Supreme Commander Allied Powere abrogated
all these fundamental rules and the Fifth and Sixth Amendment of the Constitution
of the United States of America, But does the prosecution have the affrontery and

! do they dare to ask this Commission to convict this accused of a violation of the
Geneva (Prisoners of War) Convention of 1929 when in the same breath they say that
2 Article 61 of this Convention which states: "No prisoner may be obliged to admit
himself guilty of the act of which he is accused" is abrogated and does not apply
in this case but that the accused must be obliged to admit himself guilty of the
act alleged, This is no mere technicality er rule of procedure which is being :
v:l.ui.;ﬁ but a substantial right guaranteed by the Constitution of the United States, .‘i
nr u- Y - .I-
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There can be mo doubt but that this scoused, a Japanese Naotional, should be
afforded all the ights and privileges guaranteed by our Constitution to any
eitizen who is aceused of a crime, It is for this Commission to see to it that
this accused is afforded guch rights,

But the prosecution state that this statement is corrcborated by two witnesses, *'

Let us again consider these two witnesses, The specification alleges that the
accused acted jointly with these two witnesses naming Lieutenant Colonel Ite and
as to Private Kido he is included in the phraseand other persons unknown "and in
pursuance of a common intent. Wharton's Criminal Evidence, Volume 2, Section 71k
states "narratives of past events after the conspiracy is fully executed are to
measures taken in exedution or furtherance of the common purpose inadmissible
against conspirators,

One conspirator does not,..by its execution under his authority, authorige !
his conspirator to make confessions or admissions of guilty for him, or to
narrate past events. State v Huckins, 212 Iowa 283,

"When the common enterprise is at an end, whether by accamplishment or
gbandonment, no one of the conspirators is permitted by any subsequent action or
declaration of his own to affect the others." Vharton's Criminal Evidence, Vol. 2,
par 714 citing Logan v United States, 144 US 263; Brown v U.,S, 150 US 93; Sorenson
v State (C.C.A. 8th) 143 F, 820; Gall ¥ U,S. (166.F, 419); Hauger v U.S, 173 F.

54; Morrow v U,S, 11 F (2d) 256; Lane v U.5. 34 F. (2d) 413; Collenger v U.S.
50 F (2d) 345; Minner v U.S, 57 F. (2d) 506; Dandagarda v U.S, (C.C.A. 1uth)
64 F, (2d) 182; U,8, v White 5 Crunch CCA 38 Fed Cas, No. 16-675.

In Jarrel v Com. 132 Va 551, 1108 E 430 it was held that the cdmission agaimst
the defendant, of a statement by a co-defendant charged joirtly with the defendant
who was on trial for murder was error. We submit that the admission of the
evidence of the witnesses Liesutenant Colonel Ito and Private Kido is error,

Since there has been no showing by the prosecution that the accused did "wile
fully, feloniously, with premeditation and malice aforethought" do the bayoneting,
and since the defense has shown by cross-examination of the witness, Lieutenant
Colonel Ito that he, Lieutenant Colonel Ita gave the orders for the bayoneting,
this is with justifiable cause, we maintein that the prosecution has failedto
prove the necessary allegations of murder as set out #n the specification,

Court Martial Order 5-1921 states that when malice aforethough does not exist
the homicide cannot be murder,

Section 158 of Naval Courts and Boards states: "If there is a reasonabls
doubt as to the guilt of the accused,he must be acquitted." Ve ask the Commission
to find as to the accused, Sergeant Takano, Masayoshi, the s-ecification not
proved and the accused is of the charge not guilty and the commission does there-
fore acquit the said Sergeant Takane, Masayoshi of the specification of the charge

of murder, -
MARTIN E.-Gmmﬁf{
md“, Us i
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CLOSING
ARGUMENT FOR THE PROSECUTION
Delivered by
FREDRIC T, SUSS,
Iieutenant, U.S.N.R,
May it please the court:

Much has been said about eriminal intent. May I reitterate the state-
ments of my colleague on this point as well as on the other elements of
murder]

Filfully is defined as intentionally, In an indictment charging a wil-
ful killing, it means intentionally and not by accident, It is synonymous
with intentionally, designedly, without lawful excuse, and, therefore, not
accidentally, A wilful act is one that is done Imowingly and purposely,
with the direct object in view of injuring another,

Malice aforethought, In the description of murder the words do not
imply deliberation, or the lapse of considerable time between the malicious
intent to take 1life and the actual execution of that intent, but rather
denote purpose and design in contradistinction to accident and mischance;
and the intent neceasary to constitute malice aforethought need not have
existed for any particular time before the act of killing, but it may
spring up at the instant and may be inferred from the fact of killing,

Premeditation, A design formed to commit a crime or to do some other
thing before it is done., Intent before the act, but not necessarily
existing any extended time before, Premeditation differs essentially from
will, which constitutes the orime; because it supposed, besides an actual
will, a deliberation and a continued persistence which indicate more
perversity, The preparation of arms or other instruments required for the
execution of the crime are indications of premedikation but are not absclu
proof of it; as these preparations may have been intended for other purpose
and then suddenly changed to the performance of the criminal act,

Defense counsel has contended that we have not proven this crime nor
have we proven the corpus delfcti, Permit me to read the analysis of the
proof of crime as given in Wharton's Criminal Evidence Section &40:

"The proof of every crime devolves into two component parts, to wit: (1)
Proof that the crime charged has been committed by scmeone; and (2) proof
that the defendant is the perpetrator of the crime., The first element is
the body of the crime or the corpus delicti; the second ia the proof of the
defendant's connection with the crime, i.e,, his guilty participation
therein,

Let us now consider the province of an extrajudicial confession in the
proof of crime as thus treated.

It is practically universally held that the corpus delicti of a crime
cannot be proved by an extrajudicial confession standing alone, but must be
proven independently of it, Moreover, a verdiet of guilty and a subsequent
eonviction cannot be sustained upon an extrajudicial confession ‘only,
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' Stated conversely, the rule is that an extrajudicial confession of the

accused must be corroborated by independent proof of the corpus delicti of
the crime.....Such corroborating or independent evidence of the corpus
delicti may be direct or cirommstantial,

The overwhelming weight of authority, however, recognizes that such a
confession, or admission may be considered in connection with other evidence
to establish the corpus delicti, and that it is not necessary to prove it by
evidence which entirely excludes & consideration of the confession.”

We have proven the corpus delicti by two eye-witnesses brought before this
court, They have testified very definitely that the murder was committed
and it was not necessary that they testify to the acoused's guilty partiei-
pation, This testimony taken together with the confession of the accused is
sufficient evidence to convict him of the crime,

In addition to establishing the corpus delicti these witnesses have
testified as to the mccused's guillty participation therein, Therefore, we
| have produced more proof than is necessary to establish the accused's guilt
of this crime,

It has been stated that there ls no proof that the vietim was an American,
The evidence has been very clear that the order of the Brigade under which
the victim was executed stated that two American aviators would be executed.
This evidence was clear and unmistakable,

We concede to the defense's contention that two of our witnesses were
accomplices in the crime, However, this fact does not render the testimony
incompetent. In Underhill's Criminal Evidence page 257:

"The credibility of witnesses, and the weight of their testimony, whether
they are sccomplices or not, is for the jury exclusively; and the jury should
carefully consider accomplice's testimony in the light of all other evidence
and the influence under which it is given. But the jury may belleve an
sccomplice's testimony notwithstanding the introduction of evidence tending
to impesch an aceomplice."

May we point out to the Commission that these witnesses were not co-
defendants although they may have been accomplices. They are not tried to-
gether in the same trial, Therefore, the law with regard to the testimony
of co-defendants is not applicable.

Counsel has made the contention that there is no individual responsibilitly
for such crimes under International law but the responsibility is merely
of the soverign state. -

" Let us see what the Japanese govermment has to say about this:

The govermment of Japan included these rules of international conventl
in the Army Operational Handbook and in the Navy Regulations and in additi
to this the Japanese War Ministry issued a notification in March 1942,
covering regulations for the Treatment of Priscnmers of War, This document
l recognizes the obligations of international treaties and customs by stating

as follows:

")y prisoner of war, as defined in these regulations, is any enemy combatant
who has fallen into the power of the Empire or any other person who is to
scoorded the treatment of a prisoner of war by virtue of international
treaties and custome."

\ e (2)




"A prisoner of war shall be humanely treated and in no case shall any
insult or maltreatment be inflicted upon him",

This,gentlemen, is Japanese law,

It has been argued that there was nc common intent between the accused
and the persons alleged in the specification, We have shown that the accused
acted jointly with each of the persons mentioned in the specification, Our
evidence clearly shows the part that each of these persons played in the
crime, That the accused knew that his action was wrongful is apparent from
the fact that he said he had done everything he mew to avold such action.

Some mention has been made of the testimony given by the accused in a
previous trial, The Commission will note from the date appearing on the
confession that this complete confession was submitted before the accused
appeared as a witness in that trial,

It has also been contended that the sccused is entitled to the privileges
of a prisoner of war under the Geneva Convention, The Geneva Convention
does not apply in any way to the accused. There is no evidence that the
accused was ever a prisoner of war. On the contrary when he was apprehended
he was living as a civilian in Japan, He was never apprehended during the
war, therefore, he can not claim to have been a priscner of war at any time,
Even if the Geneva Convention did apply in this case the provision cited
has in no wmay been violated, This provision referred to by defense counsel
states that a prisoner of war must not be obliged to admit his guilt of
charges brought against him, This accused was never obliged to admit his
guilt of charges btrought against him, On the ocontrary the evidence shows
the accused sutmitted a voluntary statement, The accused was in no way
forced to make such a statement, It has also been contended that under the
court martial orders when a deposition is used to convict an accused the
sentence must be limited. When have we used a deposition in this trial?

The record does not show that any deposition was presented before this
commission, !

The only defense offered by the accused is that he was acting under ordurr.
Let us look to the pertinent law on this subject,

In the famous American case of US v, Jones, 3 Wash, CC209, the court said,
"We do not mean to go further than to say that the participation of the in-
ferior officer in an act which he knows, or ought to lmow, to be illegal,
will not be excused by the order of his superior®.

This was upheld in CMO 4-1929 where the court said, "In refererce to the
contention of the mccused that he was scting in the performance of duty, it
is deemed pertinent to refer briefly to the law pertaining to homleide
committed by persons in the military service. It is a general rule that a
soldier (or sailor) is bound to obey all lawful orders, and all he may do
in obeying such lawful orders constitutes no offense as to him, But an
order 1llegal in itself and not justified by the rules and usages of war, or
in ite substance clearly illegal, so that a man of ordinary sense and under-
1tmmgwﬂdk*ulmuhmmtmﬂnrmdarnmmtitm
illegal, will afford no protection for a homicide, provided the act with
which he may be charged has all the ingredients in it which may be necessary
to oconstitute the same a crime in law®,

In CMO 121 of 1919, it wae said, "A soldier is bound to cbey only the lam-
ful orders of his superiors, If he receives an order to do an unlawful act,

= (3)




¢

he is boumd meither by his duty, mor his oath to do it, So far from such
order beimg a justificatiom, it makes the party givimg the order am accom=
plice in the crime,”

|
Under internatiomal law it has also been held that am act im obediemce to |
a military order of a superior is not justifiable when that act iz kmown or |
under the circumstances should have been kmown, to be illegal under the laws |
and customs of warfare, This doctrine 1n international law is clearly
demonstrated in the celebrated German case called the Llandovery Castle |
Case, In this case the German Supreme Couwrt trying German defendants for I
the machine-gunning of open life~boats declared, "Military subordinates !
are under no obligation to question the order of thelr superior officers and |
they can count upon its legality. But no such confidence can be held to !
exist if such an order ls universally known to everybody, including also the |
accused, to be without any doubt whatever sgainet the law..eese They should, |
therefore, have refused to obey. Ais they did not do so, they must be t
punishad, " .

In the Vexican War case of Mitchell v. Harmony, Chlef Justice Taney
of the United States Supreme Court wrote, "It can never be maintained that a
| military officer ecan justify himself for doing an unlawful act by producing
|thﬂ order of his superior. The order may palliate but it camnot justify"”,

Defense counsel hes seen fit to attack the rules laid down by the
Supreme Commander for the Allied Powerss HReference to the record will
show that we have not resorted to the SCAF rules in this case. We have
produced enough evidence to convict the accused without resorting to such
rules and under such procedure which would be accepted in any civilian or
military court, We have referred to the SCAP rules with regard to judicial
notice but in this instance the ruls of judicial notice is the same before
any civilian or military tribunal, Any court will take judicial notice
of facts of common knowledge. The only SCAP rule which we ask the court
to apply is one that operates in favor of the accused, and it 1s as
followa:

"Action pursuant to order of the accused's superior, or of his govermment,
shall not constitute a defense, but may be considered in mitigation of
punishment if the commiseion determines that justice so requires."

Tazdas T Suss
FREDRIC T, SUSS,
Lieutenant, USHR.
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STATEMENT OF TAKANO MASAYO9HI
. ' Former Sergeant, IJA, .

27 July, 1946,

1. Regarding the execution of prisonera of war 1in
August, 1944 half way up Nakayama Pase, I will confese to my
part in the execution. I received the Battalion Commander's
order thru Platoon Leader Teuchida and acting on thie order
I went to the Kominato Barracke around 9 o'cloeck in the morn-
ing on thie date.

(The Battalion Commander'e order: Serpeant Takano muet etab
a prisoner of war).

2. Then I went to Nakayama Pass, the scene of the
execution, and there stabbed a prisoner of war. There were
two (2) or three (3) otheres who also stabbed the prisoner of
war, After thie, Lieutenant Colonel Ito beheaded them. At
the time, I «cted on instructions from Firast Lieutenant Ikawa.
The officers present at thies time, I believe, were: Lieuten-
any Coloneli Ito, Lieutenant Colonel Kato, Firet Lieutenant
Ikawa, First Lieutenant Yamashita, there were some othere;
however, I do not remember clearly.

S I make the above confesegion. I will talk of
the detalle when I am cross-examined.

July 27th, 1946. é i?%
VANU, MATAYOS

Subgeribed and eworn to before me this 27th day of July, 1946,

Ma jor, U.8.X.C
S8entor Member.

I, TAKANO, Masayoshl, being duly sworn on oath, state that

I have had read to me, and understood the translation of my
statement consieting of one (1) page, and it 1s the truth to the

best of my knowledge and bellef. .
TARANU, HIE&IU“E! |

"EXHTBIT (2)* (1) |




COMMANDER OCCUPATION FURCES)
GUAN, MARTANAS ISLANDS)

I, Frederick Arthur Savory, eivilian, interpreter, being
duly sworn on oath, state that I have truly translated the fore-
golng statement given from Japanese to English and from English
to Japanese respectively, and that after being transeribed, I
truly translated the foregolng statmment containing one (1) page
to the witness, that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed
hie eignature thereto.

Senior Hemﬁ;r

CUMMANDER QCCUPATION FURCES)
GUAN, VARIANAS ISLANTS)

I, Robert D. Shaffer, Major, 06652, U. 8. Marine Corpe,
certify that on 27th day of July, 1946, pereonally apneared
before me Takano, Masayoshl, and according to Frederick Arthur
Savory, interpreter, gave the foregoing statement and that
after his etatement have been transcribed the said Takano,
Masayoshl had read toc him by the eald interpreter, the same
and affixed hie signature thereto in my presence.
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Guam, Marianae Islande,
27 July, 1946.

The foregoing statement consisting of one (1) page, made by
me, was not obtalned py threats, promliees, .or inducements of any
kind. I wrote the foregoing statement freely and willingly, and f
it le true to the beet of my knowledge and bellef. '

& ﬂ*#’

]
Former sergeant, I
Imperisl Japanese Army.
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AFFIDAVIT FOR THE CLARACTER OF PORMER SERGEANT NAJCR TAKANO, MASAYOSHI,|
I humbly make my statement before Your Honor, The Fresldent of the !
Military Commission,

Sergeant Najor TARAND was attached to the YAMASHITA unit of the 307Tth
Battalion and was the Squad leader of the lst section. He respected his
superlors, loved his subordinates, and exerted himself every day and night
in constructing our positions and dlacharging his duty. Before I was trans-|
ferred to another unit I was on duty with him in the same section for unvaraﬂ
meeks. i

|

Sergeant Major TAEANO was simple mild and honest in nature., He was
earnest in his operations, obedient to the orders of his superiors, loved
what was right, abhored what was wrong, and d4id his best in discherging his
duty. He was always gentle, relied on by his superiors and comredes, and
had a good reputation.

He 13 @ native of a farming femily, If he is not able to work at his
farm it will be difficult for his family to make & living. He wes forced
to part with hie wife and children because of war, but his military service
will make his family's living miserable. He often told me the above, As
he was in the above situation, he ought to be cprosed to such an action,
Therefore, I cannot but imagine that he was obliged to do so.

I beg your kind consideration for his poor family and that you deal
leniently with him,

23 September 1946,

To Your Honor, The President of the Military Commission,

Sergeant IJA, Chichi Jima,
KISHINOTO, Masao,

I certify the above to be a true and complete translation to the best
of my ability of the original affidavit »—~itten in Japanese.

£z : .IW
ERICK F. TREMAYNE.

Ideutenant (jg), USHRE.

Interpreter,
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AFFIDLAVIT POR THE CHARACTER OF SERGEANT MAJOR TAKANO,
I humbly state here concerning the character of Sergeant Major TAKANOC,

Sergeant Major TAEANC and I were attached to the same battalion, Though
our units were different, we engaged together in constructing our positions
at the same place for a& short time before the termination of the war., There-
fore, I will tell you what I knew about him during this periecd.

| He was very mild and obedient in nature, earnest in his duty; besides he

| was & man of few words. He wa= ac kind ¢o his subordinates that he was loved
by them, He took the lead in the operations and taught his men kindly how
to work.

I beg your kind conslideration of what I have just mentioned and that you
{ will understand the noble character of Sergeant Major TAKANO,

Former Captain NAKANO, Masani,

To Your Honor, The Fresident of the Military Commission.

I certify the above to be a true and complete translation to the best
of my abllity of the original affidavit written in Japanese.

?! Len {-ﬂéﬁ f-j.?&fwu?;?pu
FREDERICK F, TREMAYNE.
Lieutenant (jg), USKR.
Interpreter,

"Exhibit 6"
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UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET U |34
COMMANDER MARIANAS |

Hm ]:Tf\.-'ﬂia.'

The military eommission, eomposed of Army, Mavy and Marine Corps
Officers, in the foregoing case, was convensd 15 October 1946, by the
Commander Mariunas Area pursuant to his inheremt suthority as a Military
Commander and the specifie authorisation of the Commander in Chief United
States Pacific Fleet (CinCPac conf, serial 0558 of 8 March, 1946) and
Pacific Ocean Areas, and Military Govermor of the Pacific Ocean Areas,

| The commission was specifically suthorised to take up the present case
| amd other cases the trial of which had not been commenced which had beean

ordered tried bafore the Military Commissions convened by the precepts dated
August 2, 1946 and August 24, 1946, The order for trial (charge and
specification) was issued 16 September 1946 and served on the accused on

18 September 1946, The trial was held under the authority of Navul Courts
and Boards except that the commission was authoriszed by the precept to
relax the rules of Naval Courts to meet the necessities of the trial and

to use the rules of evidence and procedure promulgated by the Supreme

ﬂm:tﬂrthuﬂﬁh-ﬂhmhﬁtimmmm
of Accused War Criminals, dated 5 Decem s 88 NeCessary

L R

The evidence clearly shows that the defendant Sergeant Masayoshi Takano,
IJA, while attached te the 307th Indepemdent Infantry Battalion, First
Mixed Brigade, IJA, on Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands executed an Americun
prisoner of war by bayoneting in obedience to an illegal order received
by him from higher authority. The command of & superior neither sxcuses
nor justifies an unlawful act., (Clark and Marshall,

. The Law of Crimes
| 4th Ed., Sec. 71, n. ?:Lo; cMO 212, 1919, 5; 4, 1929, 19; pare ﬂ!.i,
1940) . |

Hﬂ*—m,lﬁﬂu
|
Subject to the above remarks, the proceedings in the foregoing case of
Sergeant Masayoshi Takuno are approved. The findings om the charge and
the specification thereunder and the sentence are approved.

The War Criminal Stockade, Guam, is designated as the place of confine-
ment of Sergeant Masayoshi Takano, until approval of his sentence by the
Commander in Chief United States Pacific Fleet and Pacific Ocean Areas,
at which time he will be transferred to the custody of the Commanding
General, United States Eighth Army, Tokyo, Japan, for confinement in

Sugamo Prison, Tolgo, Japan.

Y G, [ Funa

C. A, POWNALL,
Rear admiral, U. 8. Navy, .
The Commander Marianas Area,. i

| Tot Commander in Chief United States Pacific Fleet and Pacific Ocean Areas. |

Re: Record of Proceedings of Military Commission = case of Sergeant
Masayoshi Takano, IJaA.

Copy tot
Island Commander, Guum.




UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
AND PACIFIC OCEAN ARFAS
Headquarters of the Commander in Chief

Cincpac File ¢/o Fleet Poet Office,
W17=-25 San Franeisco, California.

bertar 11495 . TOEC 1546

In reviewing the record of proceedings, it is noted that on page cne "an
Anterpreter read the precept in Japanese,® lio interpreters are shown to have
een present anc it is not until page three of the record that interpreters

first shown to have been introduced and sworn. lo objection was made to
this irregularity. It is not considered, therefore, that the rights of the
ldefendant have been prejudiced,

Subjeet to the foregoing, the rroceedings, findings, sentence and the
ction of the convening muthority thereon, in the foregoing case of Sergeant
sayoshi Takeno, IJA, are epproved,

The record is, in conformity with section I-14, Naval Courts and Boards,
d Chief of lavel Operations Serial #01P22 of 28 November 1945, transmitted
o the Judge Advocate General of the liavy for revision and record.

J. H. TOWERS

ldm-irﬂl, U.S. Hﬂ.w, |

| Commeander in Chief, :

| United States Pacific Fleet,

- and Facific Ocean Areas,

| and the Militery Governor of the
Facific Ocean Areas.

To: Judge Advocate General,
ant Record of proceedings of Military Cormission - case of Serpgeant Maa&yashif
TAKANO, IJA.

Coples to:

ComMARTANAS

War Crimes Director POA (GUAM)
IsComGUAM

i
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TAKANG, MASAYOSNI
Sergeant, Imperial Jepanase Arwy,
Trial W Mlitery Commission
At Ouss
Enrianas Islande,
Gotober 21, 1946,
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UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
COIMMANDER MARIANAS

& Serial: 12841 15 October 1946,

The Commander Marianas Area, .
Rear Aduiral Arthur G, ROBINSON, U, S, Navy.

Precept for a Military Commission.

Pursuant to the authority wvested in me by virtue of my office as
Gmndar Marianas Area and Deputy Military Covernor Marianas‘Area and further byt
i the specific authority vested in me by the Commander-in-Chief, U. S. Pacifle Plut Bt .
. (CinCPac conf. serial 0558, of Merch 8, 1946), and Pacifie 'Dcean Areas, and H:ilitug }
Governor of the Pacific Dcnan Areas, a.mi by the Jud e Advocate General of the Nayy ""=8
(JAG decpatch 311730Z, August 1946), a Military Commission is hereby ordered to
ccrivene at the Headquarters, Coumander Marianas on Guam, Marianas Islands, at

k- 10 o'clock a.m. on ldonday, October 21, 1946, or as soon thereafter as practicable, =%
A at the call of the Praaidar*t., for the t.r:.al of such persons as may be legally - LR
g brought before it,

#;'“ e The Military Commission is composed of the following mombers, any

five of whom are empowered to act, visz:

l: ) - Rear Adniral Arthur G, ROBINSON, U. S, Navy, President,
Ly Colonel Adolph L. RAMON, Army of the United States,

dr Colorel Douglass G, PAMPLIN, Aray of the United States,
e Lieutenant Colonel Adolph ZUBER, U, S, Marine Corps, -
b Commander Ramon J, WALLENBORN, Dental Corps, U, S. Navy,
é‘;j Comnander Vence O, SKITH, U. S. Naval Reserve, and of

AN Lieutenant Daniel FLYNN, U. S, Naval Reserve, Lieutenant Edward L,
. FIE.D. U, 8. Naval Reserve, and Lieutonant Fredric T, SUSS, U. S, laval Reserve,
as judge advocates, any of whom is authorized to act as such,

Commander Martin E, CARLSON, U, S, Naval Eﬂaer\ru, Lisutenant e

Commander Donald H, DICKEY, U, S, Naval Rﬂaurvﬂ, and Masanao TODA, and Kenro ITO, ' %
=+ of Tekyo, Japan, both fumiahed by the Japanese Government, all of whom are lawyers, =
; are available and authorized to act as defense counsel, This suthorization does By
not preclude as defense counsel others who are availablu and are desired by accused, =

Cbservers designated by the French and Swiss Governments are -
authorized to attend trials wherein an accused is alleged to have unlawfully killed S
French and Swiss nationals, A duly accredited native of the ldrrshell Islands 1is :
also suthorized to participate as an observer in any trial of =n accused charged
with offenses againet Marshallese,

il =

[

3. The Military Commission shall be compstent to try all offenses withim N8
the jurisdiction of exceptional military courts. It shall have jurisdiction over =
~ = 2ll persons in the custody of the convening suthority at the time of the trial

._,.‘._

b

oL et
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o1 e ; UNITED STATES FACIFIC FLEET
’ COLLANDER LIARTANAS

15 October 1946, S -
Serial: 12841 P
Subject: Precept for a Military Commission. (continued)

charged with war crimes committed against United States nationals, persons referreds
to in the despatch of the Judge Advocate General of the Navy cited in paragraph = =
one (1) above, and any white person whose nationality has not prior to ordering
of the trial been established to the satisfaction of the convening authority. oy
Nothing herein limits the jurisdiction of the Military Coummission 'as to persons
and offonses which may be otherwise properly established., 3 s

[ The Military Coamission upon conviction ef an accusod is empowered &
to impoge upon such accused any lawful punishment including the death sentence,
imprisonment for life or for any less tem, fine or such other punishment as the
commission shall detemine to be proper,

. 5. The proceedings of the Military Commission will be governed by the =
e .\ provisions of Naval .ﬂcurt.s and Boards, axcept thet the coumission is pormitted ter
relax the rules for naval courts to meot the necessitics for any particuler trialy .,
and moy use such rules of evidence and procedure, issusd and promulgated by -the
Supreme Comuarder for the Allied Powvers,- (Letter General Headdquarters, Supreme
Commander for the Alliod Powers, APO 500, 5 Deceaber 1945 A.G, 000,5 (5 Dec. 45)
LS, Subject: "Regulations Guverning the Trials of Accused War Criminals,") as are =
necossary to obtain justice, The commission may adopt such other rules and forms, T
’-*I not inconaistont horowith, as it considors appropriate,

A 6. This commission is hereby authorized and dirocted to take up the
.\ oases of Licutenant’ TOMITA; Ryoji, ILJN, Captain TAiNAK4, Hasaharu, LIN, et al, and Y
Sergeant TAKANO, Masayoshi,-ILJA, ordered tried by charges and specifications dated
rospactively 26 iugust 1946, 26 august 1946, and 16 Septamber 1946, and such ut-hu' el
casos as may be now pending before the Jilitar:,r Commissions of which Rear Admiral
o Arthur G, Robinson, U. S, Navy,-is Prosidont, convened rospoctively by my precepta 3
¥ of Aupgust 2, 1946 and August 21,, 1946, ex-:mpt such casos tho trial of which may ;,,.,
m have becn am:aunmd

. Ts Datachmont of an officer from his ship or atntinn doos not of ite '
: solf relicve him from duty as & mombor or judge advocate of tho commission. Bpmiﬁ
ordors for such relief arc nocossary. .

B, Powor cuf adjournmont is granted tho commission, and adjournod .
sossiona moay be held at such tiacs end st such placos as the commission may m

a C. A. POUNALL, -
i Rear :'u:hniral, U, 8. HE'-'F:
g Tho Commandor Marianas .rca,

g e
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| |l )
L es to:
L Mambors of the Commission, -
- Judgze Advocates, =

o AR

Judge Advocate .General, U, S, Navy.
‘Certified to be a true copy:

- Frodric T, Suss,
Lieutenant, USNR,
Judre Advocate
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Tadted States Pacific Flest,
]

Commander Barianss
Nonday, Ostober 21, 1946,

Gusm, Narianas

The commission met at 10105 a.m,
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that Commander Nartin B,
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The juige advoeate introduced Vivian Kilner, civilian, as reporter,

The aoccused
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advocate made the following statement:
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udice the challenged meaber against the accused, Takanc, He asked that the

Naval

Boards, this comaission sustain his objection to Rear Adairal
coommission, He further asited that this

enge, amnounce in open court and read inte the

for any rulings which it make regarding the challengs. e d

The Judge advocats stated that the two dispatohes read previcusly should
alse be sonsidered by the commissder im ruling upon this challenge by the
aeeussd,

The challenged member replied as follows:

1 ssimowledge that the statements of the defense counsel are substantially
eorrect) however, I wish to assure all parties to this trial of my belief
that I can truly try without prejudice or partiality the case now
asocording to the evidence adduced before this commission, the rules preseribed
for this trial, the customs of war in like cases, and my own conseience. ,

The commission was eleared, The challenged member withdraming.

The commission was opened. All parties to the trial entered; the comais-
sion ammounced that the challenge of the accused was not sustained,

The judge advocates, each member and the reporter were duly sworn,

The judge advocate intreduced Lieutenant (junior grade) Frederick P,
Tremayne, U, 5, Naval Reserve, iir, Fred Savory, and Mr, Sem Ueda, as
interpreters, and thay were duly sworn,

The accused statod that he had received s ooy of the charge and s pesif-
ieation preferred against him, both in English and Japaness, on Septesber
18, 1946,

The Judge advosate asked the ascused if he had any objection to make to
the charge and specifisation,

The accused replied in the affimmative, stating as follews:

;
£
:
e

I cbject to the charge and the speeifieation because although it is
designated murder it does mot follew Lhe sample specifisation in Seetion
53 of Naval Courts and Boards, The statement that the scoused did kill is
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f a plea in bar as to the jurisdistion of this commission to
the Jurisdistion of this commission to try violations
the laws and customs of war,

The objection of the acoused was read in Japanese by an interpreter,

The acsused further ohjected to the charge and specification as follows:

o
o

Egiis
1N
33y
;
%

o]

ion pereists that the defendant, Takano, then a sergeant, IJA, did, en er
about 7 Augast 1944, wilfully, feloniously, with premeditation and malies
aforethough, without justifisble cause, and without proper Lrial or other

dus assault, strike and kill by bayoneting with a fixed bayomet, an
American oer of war, then and there held captive by the armed B reoee

of Japan, th » in vielation of the laws and customs of war, However, we ~
persist that there are no laws and customs of war which can be applied te .7
this case,

Mrst, the presecution will insist in this case, as follows: The charge
is that of murder which is one of man's oldest vices, originating with Cain
and Abel, It is highly preoper that murder is considered a war erime, The
asoused with murder in this case, was thoroughly aware that hie
act was both illegal and unjust, Nalice is not necessarily meant in the

law & malignant spirit, a salignant intention to produce a particular evil,
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The accused was arreigned as follows by the Judge advocate:

prefixed maried *§", in English; then an
prefized saried *

The judge advecate read the letter eontaining

Bo witnesses not otherwise comnected with Lhe trial were present,
apanese,
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the charge and
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¢« To the charge, guilty or net guilty?
A, I plead not guilty.

The prosssution began.

The judre advooate made the following statement

Usntlemen of the Commission:

No part of the opening statewsent of the presecution is offered as
evidence in the present case, It il offered merely as an cutline of whab

we hope to prove., Our evidence wiil show that around August 7, 1944, twe
American prisoners of war were exeguted on Chishl Jisa, Benin Islands. The

emsoution was superiised by Lisutenant Colonel Ito, who hed the priscnere

bayorsted by four men, two men stabbing each prisonsr twiee, It will be
shown that the asocused, Sergeant Takano, bayonsted one of the prisoners,
After the bayoneting, Lieutenant Colonel Ite beheaded the prisoners, Thase
Amsriean prisorers of war were givem no trial and sbsolutely no justifisationm
existed to prompt these brutal exeoutions.

The judge advocate asked the comaission to take judieial notice of the

following:

That during the year 1944, a state of war existed between the Imperial
Jovernment of Japan and the Uovermment of the United States, its allies
and dependencies.

That the island of Ghichi Jima is part of the territory under the ceomaand
of the Commander lMarisnas Area,

The Haguc Convention of October 18, 1907, and especially Artiele 23(e);
"It is especially forbidden to kill or wound an eneay who, havi..g laid down
his arms or having mo longer any means of defense, has swrendered at
dissretion”, Japan ratified and signed this esoconvention,

The Geneva Frisoners of War Convention of July 27, 1929, and espesially
Artiele 2@ "Frisonsrs of war are in the power of the hostils powes
ot of the individuals or corps who have captured thes. They must
times be humanely treated and proteeted, particularly against actes
enge, ilnsults, and publie curiosity.”

7251

The forwerd of Lhe War Departamsnt Technical Manual
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The jud @ advooste replied.

The commission announwed that the objesction was overiuled and that the
plea in bar is denied.

A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly eworn.
Examined by the judge advocate:

. Stale your nane and renk,
Ito, Kiluji, Lieutenant Colonel, Imperial Japsmese Amy.

Q. Are you presently confined on Ouam?

Yeu.

Q. If you recognisze the acoused will you state as whem?
Takano,

Q. Wars you ever stationed on Chishi Jima with the Japmese Ammy?
Tes.

Q. Betwesn what dates were you stationed om Chishi Jima?

1 was stalioned on Chishi Jims during 10 July 194 te the firsl of July
5

To what organisation were you attashed em Ghishi Jima?
was attasched to the First Mixed Brigade Headquarters under General
Tachibana.

re gry rr Py rrorr

~p

7. Q. Do you know to what erganisation the sscused was athushed? A

As No, I do not know,

%. Did you ever aee any prisoners of war on Chishi Jima?
L2

2

9 Do you remssber the date?
A, was in the beglnning of August 1944. 1 cannot recall the exast date,

10, here did you see these prisoners on Chiehi Jima?
A, I saw the pisonere at the guard house of the 307th Battalion whish was
the Kato unit,

11, §. Did yu reseive any erders with regard te these prisenere?
A. Tea.

£ Bf

12, 4. What were these ordere?
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this order from the adjutant, Captein Higasiigl, of the Bikgade ~ ¢
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nanes of two of the bayensteers as Kido and
of the other two men?

I only believed that as they were to be sxecuted, a
Af tieoe men had dome anything to justify their exesution?

How msany tines did each msm bayonet Lhe prisones?
A, Bach man bayoneted the prisoner two tisea; that is to say, the twe men

Were thiese prisonere givem a trial?

do not know.

arrangsd behind tho priscner on the rigit bayoneted him twice, and vies
5
Justifisble cause was behind the executlom,

vursa for the ome on the laft,

16. 4. Did theee four men actually bayonet the prisoner?
Ae Yes,
17. Q.

A,

19
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did you know that they were imericans?
tize there were no other persons emcept Japansse on Chighi Jima,

Hom
the

A8

N.
at
as
not doubt Lhelr word,

The accused objected to Lhe last part ol the snewer beginning, "and as
1 was told.,." and movud Uiat it be strisken froa the record,

The Judge advosate replied.
The comaission announced that the objestion wus not sustained.

29. Q. Did these prisoners have any ldentiflsatlon aarks on them?
A:s I do not know,

30, Q. Did you yourselfl emecute certain persons on August 7, 19447
As The day 7 August is not clear to me.

3. Q. Did you execute any persuns on Culehi Jiwa widle you wure there?
(™ hv

32, . Have you ever been tried for executing any pereons on Chiehd Jima?
A, I was tried here,

33, Q. /hat sentence was imposed upon you at thie time?

The judge advosalte objected to this question on the ground thal it is
irrelsvant.

The accused replied,

The commission announeced that the cbjection of the judge advocate was
sustained,

34s Gs Who was the prisoner on the right hand side?
Ay 1 do mot know tiw namses of both of them,

35. G. Who bayonetsd the prisoner on the righuy

As The prisoncr on the right was bayonetsd by the non—cosuissioned officer
that came fram a unit other than the Brigade Hoadquarters and Frivate Kide,
who cane from the Brigade Headquarters,

36, Q. Who bayonet.d the prisoner on the left?

A. The priscner on the left was otod by a superior jeivale that came
from & unit other than the Brigade juarters and Private Shimura,

3. Q. How far apart were the priscners tied?
A. I belisve it was about two meters,

38, Q. Where wore you standing in relatiom to the prisoners whem they were

bayonetedi
A« I was standing a little to the mide infromb of the right prisoner at &
distanee of about one aster.

I was told Lhat there were prisoners ai the Blgade Headquarters, 1 did



The judge advecate objected to this question on the ground that it was
ingogpetent, irrelevant and immaterial,

The accused replied,
The comaission announged that the objection was not sustalied,

A, I was told by the doctor thal I was near sigit.d and tihese lenses were
prescribod for me.

. % How long have you woern these glasses?
A, About three years,

A2, Q. Did you wear these glasses at the time of Lle execution?
A Toa,

amoute these peopls, ihere did you recsive timse orders?
In the office at Brigade Headquarters.

G Who else was presant when you recelved these orders?
1 do not recall who was present. Howewver, as the office was also used

living quartors by the cfficers and the Comuander of the Brigade, I
they were present., I also think there were scme non—coanissloned

present..

M. Qo Were these written or verbal orders?
A, Verbal ordars,

The witness was duly warned,

The somzissien then, at 11140 a.a,, tock a recess until 2110 p.a., sb
whigh tise it reconvened,

Present:

All the msembers, the judge advecates, the interprete the acoused and
s counsal. ; I :{f

Bo witnesses not otherwise conneseted with the trial wers present,

The juige advosates introdused Bobert Oldham, yeosan third cless, U, 8,
Navy, as reperter,

grg -

i

The reporter wes duly swern,




Ite, Kilmji, lisutenant cclonal, Imperial Japanese Amy, the witases
under examination when the reeess was taken, entercd, He was warned that
the abh previouwsly taken was still binding and sontinued his testimony.

(Cress—examination contimned,)

&7. 4» The orders you reeeived that you testifiod about this morning, did
you object to carrying out these ordare?

4, Did you selesot all the psopls to help you in the execution?
I onl; pleked the two men from the Brigade NHeadquarters,
.

What is the nase of the aceused in this case?
Takano.

A,
4B,
A,
9.
A,
50. fas he a mamber of the Brigade Headquartcra?

Ay Mo, he was not a member of the Brigade Realruarters.

Bedther the judge advocate nor the ascused desired further to examine
this witness,

The conmission did not desire to exaalne this witness,
The witness uade the following statement:

1 received the orders for the carrying out of the exscution frum Adjutant
Rigashigl, The order did mot come direetly from Lhe Brigade Comaander
although we lived in the same quarters, This was due to the fast that there
was frietion in our relations, I was seheduled to retumn to Jajan as a
sgehool instructor in Mugust 1944, I do mot know why I was not retumed,

Not so long age Okomoto, a witness, testified in this ecurt it seemed £
to him that there were more than four beyoneteers, In fas believed that </
there were five or six others aixed up in the bayoneting., I would like %e
state that this is absclutely false, The exscution was earried out as a
coramony. Okemoto also testified thut ne of tie prisoners moved his head
three tines after he was bayoneted, This is alsc false, I swear that both

prisoners bled out of their mouths as soon as the prisoners were bayoheted
in the chest. I hawve nothing further to add.

The witnees was duly warned and withdrew,
A witneas for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn,
xamined by the jud. e advoocate:

State your nase and rank?
m-‘_— Army, Superior Private Kido, Matsutare.

iil. lur-murmmﬂmhu‘r
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and




The asoused stood when pointed out amd then resumed Lis seat,

A, Sergeant Takano,

s Superior frivate Kide, were you ever stationed on Chishi Jima in the

apanese Ammy?
Ay Yesn,

5. Y, TWhen did you arrive on Chiehi Jima%
A, In July of 1944,

6. d. When did you leave Chichi Jima’
A, On the second of January 1946,

7 4 While stutioned on Chichi Jima to what unit were you attached?
Ay Brigade Head uarters,

B, Qs Vhile al the Bricads leadguarters 1id you cver have the ococcasion to
see any prisoners of war?
As 1 saw soma,

9. de When did you seoe Lhese?
As I do not remesb. r (e day and month,

10, 4 Did you also witness an execulion of an Amsriean prisorer of war?
Ae 1 have,

1l. 4s when did Liis take place’
Ae 1 think it was in the begloning ol August Lylkh.

12, G« ALt blis tice was one, or more t.an on¢ prisoncr executed?
Ay Two were axcouted,

13, ¥e Will you tell the comalssion what took place at the seens of the
axscution as you saw it?

Ay I saw two prisonors who were tiod down to s.ekea, 1 remssber ome
prisoner was tall and one was shorter. They wer: blindfolded, 1 remeuber
Colonel Ito bowing toward the Imperial Falace, after tils the execution was
eonducted,

L4 s How was tiis execution conducted’
A: Tney were plerced by bayonets and beheaded Ly a sword,

15: Qs How many perscns did you see plerce the prison-r with bayoneta?
A 1 saw two persons,

16s %« Do you know the names of tle two persons that you sam?
As They were two non—comaissioned officers,

17 Q= Do you know the name of eith.r er both of these non-comaissioned
of ficers?
As 1 remsmber the ranks of Oorporal and Sergeant, but I do not know thelr




you partieipate in this bayoneting yourself?

j Fe

you the first parscn to bayonet Lhe prisoncr cr hud soasons

preeedod you!
resssber a Sergeant plerced before ma,

Do you know the nase of that Sergeanti
renesb r him in t is eouwrt room,

BE rE
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W Do you see this Jergeant present in tids court today?
1 de,

rp re r

R

Qe W1l you plesse poirt him out and indicale who he ls?
The acoused stood wiaen pointed out wad resunsd lls seat,
Ae Sergeant Takano.

2), 4 How aany tises did you see Sergeant Takano bayonet tils prisonsr?
Ay I remember it vwas L o or three times,

2hs 4 Do you rescall the nationality of tils priscner?
A. I do not know the nationality. I remembor tLiat one was tall and one
was shorter,

25, G What mas tle solor of the skin of thess two men?
A, They looked like loreigners.

26, G, Sould you say tuey were wiite wen, black wmen, yellow men or what
solor?

A: The tall one fod blosk salr but the shorter coe had, 1 think, a reddish
oolor hair,

27. G. Do you recall the sclor of their skin?
Ay I do not know,

28, Q. Insofar as you know was any trial givean to withor or bokh of these
men that you paw executed?
A, I do not knowm,

| 29. 4. Insofer as you know had eithicr or both of tiese sen done snything
to Justify being exscubed?
As I do not knome

30, G Private Kido, do you know why eitbor of Liese amn were execubed or
what was the purpose that brought about their exscutions? ;
Ay, 1 do not know,

Cross~examined by the acoused:

. Q
A I

How far from the priscner were you during the bayoneting?
think it was about fifteen to eightesn feet,




32, 4. FHas the person bayoneting the prisoner whom you saw, wss he betweesn
thie priscner and you?

As 1 was standing st a point between about twelve to eighteen feet back of
where the priscnor was tied and about the middle of both of them.

33. 5. Fhen were Lhene prluur.ar; blindfolded? *r-"//

As DBafore thay were executed,

3. Q. Vere they blindfolded when you were at the seens of the exeoution?
As Yoo,

35 G. Fe.e you the first to bayonet this prisoncr that you bayoneted?
Ae I was ordered after the non-coamissioned officer was erdered to do so,

36, Qs VWho ordered you to bayonet the prisoner?
A. Sergeant Takano,

37. Q= Who ordered you to sttend the scene of the exscutio?
A, It wae tiie order of the Brigade Comzander,

38, S. Was this a written order?

A, I was ordered by the head of the orderlies, Ho said it was tie order of
the Brigade Con ander and to go to Eominato and receive instrustions from
Colonel Ito,

39. Q. Did you go to the scene of the exsculion alcne?
A« I went with many people to the scene of the sxecuticn, but 1 went by
myself to Kominato,

kO, Ge At the scene of the execution did Colonel ltoc order Sergeant Takano

to piesrce the prisoner?

A, There was a non~oomulssioned officer stunding in front of each priscosr

and Colonel Ito said: "StaB", Vs

Al. 4« Before Sergeant Talano was ordered to stab, did you see hia eome
bafore the prisoner?
Ae I saw him go to a polint about four to live feot in frot of the priscner,

&2, Qs bDefore that time did you know where Sergeant Takano wss standing?
A. [He was near that vieinity.

&3, Q. About how far was he?
A, He was with the peopls who were all lined up.

bh. Q. Was not Sergeant Takeno hiding behind a crowd of pesople?
A, I think he was with ev.rybedy elss.

A5, Q. Who was he with?
A. I do not remsuber, but I ressaber that he was together with the rest in
& group.

Neither the Jud e advosale nor the aceused desired furtier to examine
tiis -‘1“'-.. "

The ocom ission did not deaire to examine this wiLhess,

15




The witness said he had nothing further bo state,
The witness was duly warmed and withdrew,

Frederisk A, Savory, was called as a witness for the presesution and
duly swom.

Q. State your nane,
Frederick A, Savory.

memmm-ﬂmmz*

Q¢ If you resognise the accused state as whom?
Takano,

Q. By whom are you smployed on Cuam?

Commander Marianss,

Q. In what capasity?
Interpreter for War Crines,

Ao
6. Q. In your espesity as interpreter for the Commander Marianas deo you

Pr Y TP B

\a
.

have in your possession an original statement in Japanese subuiited to Major
Shalfer by the accused? t-,[x(
As I dos
T %hﬂtmhﬂhmermumﬂmtﬂ-ﬂ-ﬂ
8, Q. By whom was that statesent written?
Ay It was written by Sergeant Takane,
9« Q. By whom was it translated?
A, I translated 1t myeelf,
10, Qs Was anyone present with the accused when he wrote tils stateammt
ﬁl:llﬂhhhdhmwﬂﬂ
A,
11, Q. Were you present when this statement was submitted by the asoused
to Major Shaffer?
A, Yea,
12, Q. Were any promises made to the asoused or threats to induse him teo
give this statement?
Ay Bo,

The statesents of the accused, Sergeant Maseyoshi, Imperial
im-h:hlq--lmmumwm
“Hhth”ﬂh“%ﬂbm&lm

!
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The accused objected to the admdoslon of this evidence on the following
Sround

e object to this statement of the accused being received into evidence,
Howhere in this document 1s there any evidence or doees it appear that the
accused was over accorded the rights of a defendant., liovhere can we find
that Seetion T34(c), Meval Cowrts and Hoards wes complied with, It is
very prejudicial to the rijhts of tids accused,

lowhere does it appesr in this statement thot he was ever motified by a .
so=-called sendor membor of the loard of Inwestigation of the glst of the
ovidence intended to ilmplicate him nor that he was instructed that he would
be accorded the rigte of the accused for & cowrt matial; namely the
right to have counsal,

Such an accused does iiave the right to refuse to answer ineriminating
or degriding questions. This rijht wuo nover explained to this accuned,
tho offerin: of this document into evidence will result in the accused
being made Lo testify ageinst ninself, This is strictly at variance with
the fifth and sixth amendments of the merdcan Constitution, ‘e maintain
that to admit thds document into evidence wdll be mort prejudicisl to
the rights of the asceused in this case, and we object to this statement
being recelved into evidence.

Tha Judge advocate replied,

The comde-ion wus clerred,

The comdssicn wos opaneds 11 partles to the trial entered.

lio witnessee not ctliervdec comeocted with the trisl waere pressnt,

Theo commdscion announced that the objection of the accused waa not
sustalned, ;
The statement of Sergeant Takano, Massyoshl, imperial Japanese .rmy, in
J se and the nglish translatlon thereof were so reccived in svidence
are appended markod "Rxhitdt 1" and "Exhibit 2" respectively.

13 < 1 ask the witness to read the inglish translation of Takano's
statament. .

The witness read the .nglish translation of the statement of Takane,
kasayoshl, ‘ergeant, LJA, copr appended maried "Sxhibit 2,

An Anterpreter read the eriginal statement in Japanose of ergeant Takano,
Masayoshi, IJ\, appended maried “Exhildt 1",

n-umudmmu-ur-h_mmm-ﬂm

The juuge sdvosate did not desire further to examine this witness




The commission did not desire to cxamine this witneess,

The witness was duly warned and resumed his seat as an interpreter,

The prosscution re-ted,

The accused at 3125 p.m,, requosted an adjournment until 9:00 a.m,
tomorrow morning, Tuesday, Uetober 22, 1946, to cosplete the preparation
of hie defense,

The cossdosion announced _hat the request of the acoused was granted,

The commission then, at 3125 pem., adjowrned until 9100 a.m., Tuesday,
uctober 22, 1946,




A1 the the advosates, the the
& =."H- ”; M reporter, interpretere,

bu—--pm-—mu-ﬂhm--_t.

By, Kerre, s Jepancee coumse] for the scoused, stated that inassmeh
--m--:-'-nt-h-—n—muuh
argement of the judpe advoemts, the ssoused the right %o the
opening argunent of the judge advesate read in in open court,

Nr, Nosaneo Todn, ¢ coumse) for the accused, resd a writtem argument
in Japanese, sppended marked "0° ’ )




hly'wh'mlh.”ﬂlr.hh‘ndli.#
¥y, Kemro counpe] for the sccused, read a written 1
l Ite, 53 . " arment 1

hw.-f-dmmﬂﬂr.IhhHIﬁ.“

Nartin E, Car? Commander, U, 5, Ngval Regerve, a counsel for the
_ﬂ.rﬂ't-m-"-&m_ﬂ'“-

T™he commipeion armounsed that Im respomse to the request of the sosused
as ertodisd In tMs arpeeet, 1t would determine tha sentonecs In sccordance
with the awvthority pranted to 1t by the precept, /

The sceused wa'ved tha right to have t'a erpuwnt of Commender Ourtpon
read in Japanese in opam emrrt,

_L_Th Judpe afvoenta read hip written elosing arpument, aprended marked

T™he aconsed mived the right to have the closing srrument of the Judge
afvoeste resd !n Japaness in opem court,

The trial wme finighed,
T™he commierion was oleared,

The judpe atvoeates were recalled and Airected to record the following
MM rdingat

3 U BRI, tepat, e e o,
The cormdasion was opened, 411 parties to the trial entered,
Robert O1dtar, yooman third clase, U, 5, Yawy, reporter,
lo witnesses not otherwise cormested with the trial were present.
T™he ceemiseion armovmesd its findings,
The comission annoumped thet 1t was prepared to hear evidemse in witigatiem,

Teda, Yasarne, a counse) for the sccused, was duly sworn as & witnese
for the acoused, .

Epprired by tte juige efvoocate!

l-ql.“ T,
h-hnu

Exanined by the ascused!

2, 9, iAve you a defense sounsel in this sase’
A, Yo, I am,
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you have certain dosuments in your possession that you wish te
have two documents, the originals of which are im Japanese, /
d{.

Ae I
he 4. Are these documents evidinee of character for the defemdant, v

Takane, for mitigation purposes?
Ay Yea,

5. W+ Have these doouments been translated into English?
A, Yes, thay have been translated into English,

6. 4« Do you wish to offer these documents in evidence in behalf of

Sergeant Takano,
A Yea,

Two doounents in Japanese and the English translatione thereof, were
subnitted to the judge adwvocate and to the commission and b, the sccused
of fered in evidence, There being no cbjection they were so received,

T« 4 W1l you read the {iret of these two documents in Japanese?
As I shall resd the affidavit of Sergeant Kishimote, Masso, Imperial

Japansse Armm .

The witness read in Japanese the affidavit of Sergeant Kishimoto, Masso,
Imperial Japanese Army, appended marked "Exhibit 3",

An interpreter then read the English trulhtl;u of "Bxhibit 3%, appended
marked "Exhibit A", '

8, . W1l you read the second of these two dosuments in Jespanese?
Ae I shall re.d the affidavit of Captain Makano, Masani, Japorial Japanese

Arey,

The witness read in Japanese the affidavit of Captain Nakano, Masani,
Imperial Japanese Amy, appended mariced "Exhibit 5%,

An interpreter then reed the English trenslation of "Exhibit 5" appended
maried "Exhibit 6",

The judge advosate did not desire to cross-exaaine this witness,
The acoused did not desire further to sxamine this witnees.

The commission did not deslre to examine this witness,
The witness resumed hds seat as a counsel for the assused.
The comaission was eleared to songider the sentence of the ascused,
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The eommission was cpsned, All parties to the trial embered.
The eommission thes read and promoumced the semtence to the aceused,

The commission, having ne mere sases before i%, adjourned to amit the
action of the eomveming autherify,

ARTHUR G. ROBIKSON,
Rear Muival, U, 8, Navy, Presideat.

EDWARD FIELD
H-H' U, 'QL.-nﬂ lh“' w Advocate,

FREDRIC T, SUsS
mu.l.hll:-rn.wﬂvuﬁi.
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the eonseription age, on the 10th of Jemuary, 1928,
tewining

the Eofu Regimemt where I received militery
hm-l-lnﬂﬂhﬂﬂ
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I s almys very anxious about my famdly.
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leniently with me,
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FREDLUJCK F, TRENAYNE,

Lisutenant (jg), VSR,



OPENING ARGULMGNT FOR THE PROSECUTION
DELIVERED BY
LIEUTENANT EDUARD L. FIELD, USNR 3

In sunning up this case the prosecution feels that the case has been most aimpl:
and the pertinent facts are very clear to all parties of this trial, We found it
only necessary to bring two witnesses before this comaission in order to prove the
charge and specification, and we have corroborated this with the coufession of the
accused,

I wish to conslder each allegation of the specification and show how each alleg-
ation of the specification has been proved.

The first allegation of the specification names the accused, Takano, lasayoshi,
We have seen two witnesses identify the accused by name and identify him as a
participant in this crime, and there can be no doubt that the accused in this court
is Masayoshi Takane,

The commission has heard Colonel Ito state that two of the bayoneteers that
were supplied from units other tihan the Brigade Headquarters were petty officers,
The witness, Kido, stated that Sergeant Takano bayoneted just ahead of Lim, This
clearly established that the ailegation "then a sergeant", is substantially proved
by the evidence and the additional allegation "Imperial Japanese Army" has been
also proved,

Concerning the allegation "attached to the 307th Battalion" we observe that
Colonel® Ito has testified that two of the bayoneteers other than those he sunplied
himself, were from other units of the First Mixed Brigade, and that he heard
they were fram the 307th Battalion. That is the only evidence that this man was :
from the 307th Battalion, but in the absence of any rebuttal en the part of the
accused, the assumption is that he was from the 307th Battalicn, and therefore this
allegation ia proved,

Colonel Ito testified that units of the First Mixed Brigade other than the
Brigade Headcquarters suppliad two of the executioners and it follows that if Talans
was attachad to the 307th Battalion he was likewise attached to the First Mixed
Brigade,

The allegation "military installations of the Imperial Japanese Armed Forces,"
18 likewise proved by the testimony of the witnesses, Colonel Ito and Private Kido,
in which they show all parties participating in this ecrime including the accused,
were Japanese military personnsl,

; From the testimony of these witnesses that the crime occured on Chichi Jima,
the allegation "Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands" is proved,

" ewhile so serving at said military installations of the Imperial Japanese
Armed Forces, Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands,...". Each of the witnesses identified
Takano and one of them described exactly his part-in this eriue, and we have seem
that this man was attached to the 307th Battalie., therefore he was serving at the

pald military installations,
'I'IF 1I'I‘
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The allegation "acting jointly"™ is proved when it is shown by the evidence
submitted by the prosecution!s witnesses that the accused and the persons hereafter
named in the specification participated together in the carrying out of this crime,
The accused, as well as the cther participants, were all aware of the part they were
portraying in the carrying out of this unlawful performance and the conduct of
each is but as a unit of the entire plan, The deeds of each of the participants in
order to carry out this execution were but an integral part of the over-all scheme
to execute this victim, Each was dependant upon the other in order that the final
consumnation of this plan to murder the victim would take place., The allegation -
"acting jointly" is therefore proved beyond a reasonable doubt,

Colonel Ito has told of his part in this atrocity and he testified that he
received orders from Captain Higashigi to execute the prisoners of war., Captain
Ikawa has been mentioned in the confession of the accused who stated Ikawa directed
him to participate., Shimura was one of the bayonasteers selected by Ito and his
participation in the crime is corroborated by the witness Kido,

As to the allegation "and other persons unknown" = it is not necessary for the
prosecution to prove all parties to this crime, It is sufficient when the accused
is adequately informed of the persons participating in order that he might prepare
his defense, and it is not necessary that the prosecution prove all partiea who
ray have been invelved in this crine,

The allegation "in pursuance of a common intent" means that the accused mid the
other persons mentioned in the specification with whom he is charged as acting
jointly, were carrying out the same over-all plan when they murdered this victim.
All the evidence shows that the participants were aware that the purpose underlying
their actions was the bayoneting and the subsequent beheading of the victim. The
actions of the accused with the aforementioned other participants wers designed to
sea that this execution did take place as they fully intended it should. All these
parties therefore intended to do but one deed, and that was the execution of the
victim, It is evident that this was tlie common iL.tent of all ni‘ the participants
in the crine,

"On or about 7 August 1944" is the date we allege the extecution took place,
Both witnesses testified that the execution took place in the beginning of August
1944, It is not necessary to prove the specific date, so long as we prove within
a reasonable limit of time that the execution took place as alleged. This evidence
is sufficient to prove the alleged “on or sbout 7 August 19L4",

The evidence shows that the crime did take place on Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands,

The-year 1944 shows that a state of war did exist between the United States of
America, its allies and dependencies, and the Japanese Empire, Further, we asked
the commission to take judicial notice of the fact that during the entire year
1944 a state of war did exist between the Unitad States Government and the
Japanese Empire,




Now we come to the most important part of the specification - the technical
terms used to describe the murder, First of these is ™:ilfully”. "iilfully" is -
defined in Bouvier's Law Dictimery as "in an indictment charging a wilful .
it means intentional and not by accident." Can the accused claim that the vietim ]
was killed by accident or by mistake? The answer is emphatically ne. The accused
intended to bayonet this specific victim and he did just exactly that, therefore he
wilfully participated in this crime.

The termm feloniously is a technical word used in an indictment for a felony and
it has the equivocal connotation of purposefully or unlawfully., Did the accused
purposely intend to bayonel the victim? All of the prosecution's evidence indicates
that he most certainly did purposely bayonet thie prisoner, fully cognizant of what
he was doing. Can the accused for a moment claim that he did not know that the
bayoneting of a defenseless and entirely innocent prisonser of war without any
fustifiable cause was not unlawful? The answer ajain is most emphatically in the
negative.

"With premeditation and malice aforethought" - Premeditation is defined as
Mg design to coamit a crime or to do some otheract before it is actually done",
The accused knowing that he is to bayonet the prisorer well in advance of the actual
deed is shown to have thus fovrmed the design to do so prior to the actual carriing
out of the deed. The term "malice aforathought" in the description of murder doea
not imply deliksration or the lapse of a period of emsiderable time between the
malicious intent and the actual execution of that intent, but rather denotes
purpose and design in gontradistinction to accident and mischance, Malice in the
law does not necessarily mean a malignant spirit, a malignant intention to produce °
a particular evil, If a man intentionally does wrongful act, an act which he knows
is likely to injure another, that in the law is malice", The prosecution's
evidence elearly shows that the accused, Takano, intenticnally bayoneted the
prisoner knowing that by so doing the wvictia would die and it is this intentional
deing of that wrongful act that proves beyond all reasonable doubt these technical
words of the spacification are proved against him,

The allegation "without justifiable cause"™ means that the acts of the accused
were done without his having any legal right to do it. Both witnessca for the
prosecution have testified that insofar as they kmew, there was abaclutely ne
Justification for the execution of this prisoner of war. All the prosecution's
evidence shows that the accused was acting on no legal rights when he deliberately
bayoneted this defenseless victim.

We have asked Colonel Ito, who supervised this execution, and also the witness
Kido, insofar as they knew, was any trial given this prisoner of war, They both
have answered in the negative, That this victim was merely dragged out on a hillsic
~2d summarily killed is conclusively shown by the prosecution's evidence,

"Assault" means the putting in fear of bodily harm or apprehension of immediate
peril, The evidence shows that the wictiu was blindfolded and then tied to stakes
and even though he may not have been told what fate was in store for him, he must
have fully realized what was taking place under these circumstances. The unlawful
bayoneting of this prisoner of war clearly constitutes assault,

ng 3!




The piercing of the victims body by the bayonet fulfills the allegation "strike"

"Kill" is a general term used for depriving of life and it is the contention
of the prosecution that the ~vidence clearly shows.that th s victim was killed and
that the defendant, Takano, as one of the participants in this erime, is either
himself fully responsible, or jointly responsible with the others, for the death
of this American prisoner of wir, It is entirely immaterial whether Talkano was the
sole cause of the execution or whether the other participants with him aided in
bringing about this execution., The defendant, Talano, participated in this crime -
with the intention of deliberately executing the victim and this intent plus his
overt act of bayocneting the victim places him in the position to be correctly
charged with this killing, and the evidence shows the victim did die as a result of
the action of the accused,

Regarding the allegation "bayoneting with a fixed bayonet" = we have heard
Colonel Ito testify that he ordered the men to bayonet the prisoner with fixed
bayonets. A fixed bayonet is merely a bayonet on the end of a rifle.

Colonel Ito testified, as to "American prisoner of war", that there was no one
#lse on Chichi Jima except Jropanese other than these prisoners and he knew they
were American, Kido was unalle to give the naticnality of the prisoner, but stated
that he looked like a foreigner to him. This evidence clearly establishes the
prima facle allegation that this victim was an American rrisoner of war,

It is the prerogative of the convening authority to allege or not to allege
the nane of the victim, It iz never necessary to prove the name of the victim in
order to establish the charge of murder.

Both witnesses testified that the victim was a prismner and wes in the custody
of the armed forces of Japan.

The defense objected to the  allegation of the specification "thin is vieolation
of the laws and customs of war", in that it did not specifically state what luw
and what custom of war had been vioclated. This cammission properly overruled that
objection, This allegation is sufficiently clear to pive the accused reasonable
notice of the law he is charged with violating. My colleague will amplify these
points, but I will briefly state that the accused has violated among others Article
23(c) of the Hague Convention of 1907, and Article 2 of the Geneva Prisoner of War
Convention of 1929,

The case against the accused, Takano, as shown by the prosecution's evidence
is that Takano knowingly participated in an unlawful act and that he intended to
do just what he in fact did do. It is the further contention of the prosecution
that all the allegations of the specification againct the accused, Takano, are
proved beyond a rezsonable doubt and that the charge of murder is sustained, and
that the accused stands before this comanission guilty as charged.

EDWARD L, FIELD,
Lieutenant, USNR




ARGUMENT FOR THE ACCUSED
Delivered by
ER, TODA, KASANAO

Since my colleagues will present sufficient arguments I am going to make
my statement as concise as possible,

The specification of the charge "murder" states that TAKANO, Masayoshi,
_ then a sergeant, Imperial Japanese Ammy,,,, did, on or about 7 August, 1944,...
' wilfully, felonicusly, with premeditation and malice aforethought, without
Justifiable cause, and without proper trial or other due process, assault,
strike and kill, by bayoneting with a fixed bayonet, an American prisoner of
wer,,...this in vioclation of the laws and customs of war,’

The first polnt which I can not but susmect is whether he 'myoneted the
prisoner "wilfully and feloniously". If we presume that he did bayonet the
prisoner, we peraist in our belief that it was neither wilful nor felonious be-
oause 2nd lieutenant TSUCHIDA, the leader of his platoon, ordered him to bayonet
the prisocner and lieutenant colonel ITO also ordered it st the scene of the
execution, It is evident that he bayoneted the prisoner against his om will,
And 7e maintain to the Members of the Commission that TARKANO did not bayonet
the prisener =ilfully and unla=fully.

In the second place, there is the point eoncerning whether or not the
defendant TAKANO, had any premeditetion or malice aforethought. On this point
I am positive that the defendant TAKANO, had no premeditation or malice afore=
thought in bayoneting the prisoner. The defendant is but a mere serpgeant and
premeditation means to ploan, I believe it is well knowm by the members of the
n?nmiauian whether or not o mere sergeant can plan the executlon of a priascner
of war,

Next is the question whether or not TAKANO, had any malice aforethought to-
ward the prisoner., The defendant TAKANO sav the prisoner on the day of the
execution for the first time. It wos not neccssary and there was no reason for
TAKANO to hold any malice cforethought for & prisoner vhom he sawm for the first
time, upon arriving ot the scene according to orders, And, on this point also,
we maintain to the members of the commission thot TAKANO, did not have any
premeditation or malice aforethought.

Third, there is the statement in the charge, "without justifiable cause, and
without proper trial or other duc proccss", I sincercly believe that the
commission is well acquainted through the many casecs tried before it concerning
the organizaticn, orders and the characteristice of the Japanesc Armed Forces,
How can it be known to o non-commissioned officer with such 2 low rank as
sergeant, vhether there was a justifiable ecause, or whether, there was a proper
trial, or other due procedure, No! There is abseclutely no way of knowing this,
Moreover the orders in the Japanese Apmed Forces leave no room for judging right
or urong and beeause of this the defendont TAKANO, did not know rhether or not
there was o justifiable cause, or a proper trial, or due procodure, Contrary
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to this, I believe sincerely that he may have thought thore wns a justifiable
ccuse,

The witness, ITO, Kikuji, has testified, in answer to tho question of the
prosecution, "Did these prisoners have a trial?" as follows: "As for myself I
do not know of any such thing, Personally I believed he had committed a crime
and naturally was to be executed," Even ITO who holds the high rank of a
lioutenant colonel in the Army 4id not know -thether thore was a trisl or not,
On the other hand he belioved that there must have been a justifiable cause for
tho execution, Can there be any doubt thot the defendant TAKANO believed
that there was a justifiable cause for the oxcoution of the priscners?

The odncetion of Sergeant TAKANO 4s too low to take the above points inte
consideration, They do not tonsh such things in the primary schools in Japan,
The charges and spocification conclude thnt the above ccts were in violation of
the laws and customs of wer, With his limited eduoction there is no wny for him
to Imow this., According to the Japancse Criminal Code, Article 38, there is a
rule that: "Aets with no intont to commit a crime shall not be punished. " That
punishment shall not be administered to acts committed vwithout eriminal intent is
a major prineiple in the criminal codes of the various nations of this world,

And this ia the way Internationnl Iaw should be., To administer punishment for
notions, done without eriminnl intent and in ignorance of the law is, I believe,
a gross misenrringe of justice, There is - rule in the Japenese Criminal Code,
Article 35, thot:"For actiona done by righteous duties or by laws ahall not be
punished,” A good excmple of this is the ccse of the exocutioner in conducting
an execution. Similar to the actions in this ocase actions done on orders shall
fall into the same categoery as the above example,

The specification reads as follows: "icting jointly —ith ITO, Kikuji,
lieutenant colonel, IJA, HIGASHIGI, Soiji, Coptain, IJA, IKAA, Shigeo, first
lieutenant, IJA, SHIMURA, Hisao, Lecding Private, IJA, and other persons unknown,
in pursucnce of o common intent", Therc has been no evidence presented by the
prosecution on this point, But it is wery clecr thot the defendant,Sergeant
TAKANO, did not have any common intent with any of these people,

It hns not been proved beyond o reasonable doubt by the evidence of the
varions ‘itnesses presented by the prosecution in this eccurt that it was
definitely the defendant TAKANO, who is in court todcy, who bayoneted a prisoner
of war, I believe the evidence presented by the prosecution is insufficient
evidence,

Heving argued roughly on the above points I =sk that the commission find the
defendant not Euilty,'
22 Ootober 194 MR, TCDA, MASANAO,

I certify the above to be o true and complete translation of the original
argument in Japanese of TODA, MASANAO, to the best of my nbility.

FREDERICK F, TREMAYNE,
Lieutenant, UE]- USHR,
Interproter.,
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ARGUMENT FOR THE ACCUSED
Delivered by
Mr, ITO, KENRO,

Your Honor, The President and Members of the Commission:

It is a crime against humanity to lay responsibility upon those whose acts are
limited by their superiors, and it is also cruel to condemn those to heavy punish-
ment who do not know the law.

S8ince Perry's vieit to Uraga, Japan shed her feudal thoughts and began anew as
a modern state, However, since 1928, the Japanese militalists planned to develop
their country by their invasion of Manchuria, China and other wariocus districts in
Asia, and millions of men who loved peace were deprived of their liberty and were
forced to go to the front. Anycne of these soldiers who refused to go to the front
or viclated the orders of their superiors were court-martialed and often condemned
to death, Though they were called, "soldiers", they mere, in reality, nothing
but pitiable plaves, In fact, Japan could not yet sweep away her feudalism. And
her militaristic adventure conflicted with the United States' pelicy in Asia,
namely, the Communication of John Hay, the Stimson Dootrine, eto, Professor Gris-
vold of Yale University and Professor Eldridge of Columbia University have made,
in detail, an exce)lent report about that,

As the var went on, the Japanese Armed Forces came to be defeated everywhere, and
gince the fall of Saipan, many Japanese troope isolated on islands in the Pacific
Ocean busied themselves in recovering their losses -‘hich made many more soldiers
the victims of unreasonable orderas, If the orders were unjust they had no means
by which to refuse them, nor were they at liberty to stand against these orders.

I maintain that this commission must not Yay heavy responsibility upon these
miserable soldiers who had no 1iberty. However, according to the Potedam Declara-
tion, the acts of these smoldiers have come to be trled at the Internatiocnal War
Tribunals,  Since these soldiere have been very pcorly educated, they are quite
ignorant of the existance of the lawa which honor liberty., So they were very often
at a disadvantagze,

On August 21, 1945, in the afternoon, a Japanese soldier bore witness at the
International War Tribunal at Guam Island, He did not know these lams, Therefore,
in spite of being warned at the beginning of the questioning that he did not need
to testify about anything that was disadvantageous to himself, he related his crims,
being uncapable of understanding the warning, He mas charged aftermard and un-
fortunately h=zs come to attead this same court as an accused. This poor soldier
is the defendant TAEAIQ, sergeant, Imperial Japanese Army, who is now before you.

I hope this commission will not deal with this matter as a funny story of this
oourt, but will consider it as a sad court-drama acted by a man who is a pitiable
Japanese soldier, a victim of war, and ignor:nt of law, and that this commission
will be especially carefu). in apnlying laws to this case, I think, the great
vriters such as Tolstoy, Dostooveky of Thomas Mann mould have - the greatest symw-.’.
pathy for TAKANO, the wgetim of tragic war, and would have written a good nowvel
on this sergeant,
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My argument oconoerning this case will be divided in three parts:
1, On the charge.

According to the cherge and the specification of thias case, it is said
that the defendant TAEANC, Masayoshi, aoting jointly with lieutenant colonel ITC,
captain HIGASHIGI, first lieutenant IKAWA, leading private SHIM/RA, and other
persons unknown, in pursuance of a common intent, did, ocn or about 7 August, 1944,
assault, strike and kill by bayoneting with fixed bayonets, an American.
prisoner of war, this in wviolation of the laws and cuatoms of var,

However, the defendant TAKANO was not in concert with their actions. Of
course, the defendant TAKANO is responsible for bayoneting an American prisoner
of war, but there ere no lawe or customs of war which regulate his resmonsibility.
As I already made an objection on the 2lst of this month concerning this point,
I wi1l not discuss this matter again, I think it posaible to consider that two
conventions concerning prisoners of rar, namely the 1907, Hague Convention and the
1927 Geneva Convention had no intermational wvalue from the standpoint of inter-
national lawa, irobably, they were not included in the last communication from
Japan to the United States in 1941,

2, 0On his intent,

The charge states that the defendant TANAND committed the action of this
case, wilfully, feloniocusly, =ithout jrstifiable cause, and ~ithout proper triale
or other due wrocess.

But the defendant TAKANO received, ahout seven p,m,, on the 5th of August,
1944, the order of the Battalion Commander to execute the prisoner from Second
lieutenant TSUCHIDA, then the leader of the third platoon of the 3rd Coampany of
the 307th Independent Infentry Beottalion, which was then st Fukurozawa, Chichi
Jima, TAXAFC went to the acone of execution and bayoneted with fixed bayonet,
lawfully and with good faith, according to the direction of lieutenant colenel
IT0, in the presence of thirty officers and scldiers, Aas the defendant TAKANO
had received very little education, he mas certain that the oxecution of the
prisoners et Nakayame Pass was legal, Therefore, the defendant TAKANC had no
oriminal intent, and ought not to be guilty.

According to the statement of lieutenant colenel ITO, the witness in thise
case, he /TN-ITO/ was informed of the order from Captain Higashigi with meny
people present in the office of the Brigade Headquarters. He thought thet the
order was quite a reasonable one and relayed it to his subordinates. It is clear
that sorgeant TAKANOC , on receiving this order, thought it just and legal, and
cbeyed it in ocxecuting the priscner.

3. On his motive,

According to the charge, the defendant TAXANO committed tho action with
promeditation and malico aforothought, but the faot was that he only carried out
what ho was ordored by Seeond Lieutenant TSUCHIDA, the leador of the 3rd Platoon,
He wont to the scene of execution against his own will, and hositated in front of
the prisoner, It is evidemt that he bayoneted the prisener according to the order
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v of licutenant eolonel ITC, and it ie also ovidont, by the tostimony of ITC, that
I3 tho execution took place sclamnly and ceremoniously.

IR SN S S S

The defondant TAKANO was an aged sergeant of thirty-eight yoears, He
entered thoe Army in 1928, His family was poor and is engazod in agricul ture.

I maintain that the defendant TA..‘U.HE, this pitiable scldier, did only I
carry out what he wos ordered, and that he hod no evil motive. =

Becanso of those threo reasons vhich I have stated above, I assert that
tho defendant TARANO is not guilty, And if he is found guilty, I hope that he
will be dealt with loniently, maintaining that he was foreced to oboy the order
and that he can be sympethized with in his motive

}R, ITO, KENROC,

I cortify the above to be & true and copplete translation of thoe original
argument of ITC, KEI'RO, in Japanesc to tho best of my ability.

FAEDERICK F, THREFAYNE,
Iieutenant (jg),UsSNR.
Interprcter.
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CLOSING ARGUMENT FOR THEZ ACCUSED
DELIVERED BY
MARTIN E. CARLSON, COMMANDER, USNR

Gentlemsn of the Commission:

According to military court-martial procedure the accused is afforded an
epportunity to present an argument before submitting his case to the court.
Section 421 Naval Courts and Boards states that the defense should make a closing
argument in order to properly present their case not only for the benefit of the
court but also for the reviewing authority. We present the following argunient.

The charge is alleged to be murder and yet as we said in our objections to the
charge and the specification it is alleged that the facts are in violation of the
laws and customs of war, The Commissien overruled our objectlons and found the
charge and specification in due fomm and technically correct, We are therefore
led to believe that the offense alleged is in violation of the laws end customs
ﬂf Vial's

We argue as do most international lawyers that the law of nations is binding
only on sovereign states, and not on individuals,

This accused, Sergeant Takano, Masayoshi, can only be punished under the law
of Japan or of the law of the United States.

We entered a plea in bar to the effect that this accused is not subject to the
court's jurisdiction for a violation of the Hague Convention of 1907 or of the
Geneva Prisoners of War Convention of 1929. Article LO5 of Naval Courts and
Boards states that lack of jurisdiction is a fatal defect and the plea may be made

at anytime,

VWhen it couss to individuals who violate the laws and customs of var, internat-
ional law, such as the Hague Convention, provides neither courts or punishments,
The prosecution has failed to show thut the law of naticns permits the trial of
individuals or provides punishaents for violations of the laws and custoas of war,

Legally we hold that the state and not tae soldier is liable for viclations
of the laws of war. It is incumbent upon the prosecution to furnish legal
authority and/or specific rvlings in order that this Commission may hold otherwise,

In order to properly prepare a defense we asked the Camaission and the
prosecution to inform us as to what specific law or custom of war this accused is
charged with having violated, We are still without an answer although the prosec-
ution asked the Commission to take judicial notice of the Hague Convention of
1907, We objected to the Commission taking judicial notice of this Convention
but were overruled, If the accused is charged with having violated the Hague
Convention No. IV of 18 October 1907 then we cite Article 2 of this Convention
which nrovides that the provisioms do not apply if all of the belligerents are not
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parties to the Convention, Since neither Italy nor Bulgaria has ratified the 1907
HageConvention the accused claims that he is not bound by the Convention although
Japan did sign the Convention,

If the accused is charged with having violated the Geneva Priscners of War
Convention of 1929 we point out that Japan has not ratified or formally adhered
to it, The mere fact that Japan did through the Swiss Governuent agree to observe
the provisions of this Convention make no difference legally.

This case is being tried by a judicial Commission and its findings must be
legal and the scntence imposed only if there has been a legal violation or criue,
It is not clear to the accused upon what law the charze and the specification is
based, Mr, Justice Rutledge in the dissenting opinion in the Yamashita case said:
"It is not our tradition for anyone to be charged with orime,,., in language not
sufficient to inform him of the nature of the offense or to enable him to make
defense,"

The prosecution has falled to show that the accused, Sergeant Takano, Masayos!
acted jointly with Lieutenant Colonel Ito, Captain Higasiigi, First Lisutenant
Ikawa and/or Leading Private Shimura and other persons,

Lieutenant Colonel Ito was put on the witness stand by the prosecution and he
testified he did not select Sergeant Takano as one of the bayoneteers, This
witness testified he was in charge of the execution and yet he failed to identify
Sergeant Takano as o.e of the bayoneteers.,

We maintain that this witness did not by his testimony establish or prove
the corpus delicti. Section 149 of Naval Courts and Boards states: "Corpus
delieti, literally 'the body of substance of the crime", may be defined in its
primary sense as the fact that a crime has actually been comaitted, It is the
general fact without which there could be no.guilt, ... and must be established
before any one can be convicted of the perpetration of the alleged crime; other=—
wise, the accused might be convicted of murder, for example, when the person
alleged to have been murdered was still alive....

Although Lieutenant Colonel Ito stated there was no one on Chichi Jima except
Japanese it is common knowledge that there were other persons on Chichi Jima
except Japanese Military, such persons were iampressed as laborers and made to
perform arduous labor, Is it not possible that it might have been one of these
that was executed in August 194) since nelther of the witnesses was able to
identify the prisoners as Americans, We hold the corpus delicti has not been

proved,

We also hold that the prosecution failed to show that the accused, Sergeant
Takano, did the act specified. The witness Superior Private Kido, who was
convicted of bayoneting an American prisoner of war was asked by the prosecutiecn
to testify that he saw the accused, Sergeant Takano, bayonet-a priscner of war,

On the witness stand he said that he saw two persons baycnet, two non-commissione -
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officers, He remembered their ranks but not their names, Then he remembers a
sergeant piercing before he did, Finally he remembers that he is in the court
room and points him out. This is the kind of evidence that the prosecution is
asking the Commission to convict the accused of for murder of a prisoner of war
wwse name is not even known, Kido who has already been convicted and sentenced
for this act comes before this court as a witness against the accused, Sergeant
Takano, The accused in this case, Sergeant Takano, was a witness against Superior
Private Kido and Kido,was convicted of murder. Is it not natural that Kido should
have a certain animis against the accused, Sergeant Takano, It is for the Commis-
sion to consider this point inwedghing the evidence, Kido admitted on cross-
axamination that he was 15 to 18 feet away from the prisoner when the prisoner
was bayoneted.

The prosecution, the United States of Amerieca, are charging the accused with
having violated the Geneva (Prisoners of War) Convention of 27 July 1929 and then
the prosecution violate this same Convention when they introduce into evidence a
written statement signed by the accused, Article 61 of this Convention states;
"Moo prisoner may be obliged to admit himself guilty of the act of which he ia
accused",

We objected to the statement of the accused being admitted into evidence because
the accused is thereby made to testify &rainst himself, No person can be made

to testify against hinself, This is a right guaranteed by the Fifth Amendment

to our Constitution. The Sixth Amendment of this same Constitution of the United
States of America guarantees that in all criminal prosecutions the accused shall
have the assistance of counsel for his defense., This hie did not have when he was
made to sign the statament which went into evidence, Although this statement was
signed before Major Shaffer, U,3, Marine Corps, who designated himself as Senior
Member the statement or attached papers do not show that the accused was ever
accorded the rights of a defendant or the privileges of an interested party.

Section 734 Naval Courts and Boards also states: "A person granted the privileges
of an interested party may be called as a witness, but, of course, can not be
raquired to incriminate himself,

The prosecution has stated that the Supreme Commander Allied Powers abrogated
all these fundamental rules and the Fifth and Sixth Amendnent of the Constitution
of the United States of America, But does the prosecution have the affrontery and
do they dare to ask this Commission to comviet this accused of a wviolation of the
Geneva (Prisoners of Var) Convention of 1929 when in the same breath they say that
Article 61 of this Convention which states: "No prisoner may be obliged to admit
himself guilty of the act of which he is accused" is abrogated and does not apply

in this case but that the accused must be obliged to aduit hiaself guilty of the

act alleged, This is no mere technicality er rule of procedure which is being
violated but a substantial right guaranteed by the Constitution of the United States,
of America.
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There can be wo doubt but that this sccused, a Japanese National, should be
afforded all the ;ghts and privileges guaranteed by our Constitution to any
citizen who is aceused of a crime, It is for this Comnmission to see to it that

this accused is afforded such rights,

But the prosecution state that this statement is corroborated by two witnesses,
Let us again consider these two witnesses, The specification alleges that the
accused acted jointly with these two witnesses naning Lieutenznt Colonel Ito and
as to Private Kido he is included in the phrase"and other persons unknown "and in
pursuance of a common intent. Wharton's Criminal Zvidence, Volume 2, Section Tl
states "narratives of past events after the conspiracy is fully executed are to
measures taken in exedution or furtherance of the common purpose inadmissible

against conspirators,

One conspirator does not...by its execution under his authority, authorize
his conspirator to make confessions or admissions of guilty for him, or to
narrate past events, State v Hyckins, 212 Iowa 283,

"When the common enterprise is at an end, whether by accamplishment or
gbandonment, no one of the conspirators is permitted by any subsequent action or
declaration of his own to affect the others." liharton's Criminal Evidence, Vol. 2,
par 714 citing Logan v United States, 144 US 263; Brown v U,S, 150 US 93; Sorenson
v State (C.C.A. 8th) 143 F, 820; Gall v U,S, (166 F, 419); Hauger v U,S, 173 F.

54; Morrow v U.S., 11 F (2d) 256; Lane v U.S. 34 F. (2d) 413; Collenger v U,S.
50 F (2d) 345; Minner v U.S., 57 F. (2d) 506; Dandagarda v U,S, (C.C.A. luth)
64 F, (2d) 182; U,S, v White 5 Crunch CCA 38 Fed Cas, No. 16-675.

In Jarrel v Com. 132 Va 551, 1108 E 430 it was held that the zdmission agaimst
the defendant, of a statement by a co-defendant charged joirtly with the defendant
who was on trial for murder was error. We submit that the admission of the
evidence of the witnesses Lieutenant Colonel Ito and Private Kido is error,

Since there has been no showing by the prosecution that the accused did "wil-
fully, feloniously, with premeditation and malice aforethouzht" do the bayoneting,
and since the defense has shown by cross-examination of the witness, Lieutenant
Colonel Ito that he, Lieutenant Colonel Ita gave the orders for the bayoneting,
this is with justifiable cause, we maintein that the prosecution has failedto
prove the necessary allegations of murder as set out in the specification.

Court Martial Order 5-1921 states that when malice aforethough does not exist
the homicide cannot be murder,

Section 158 of Naval Courts and Boards states: "If there is a reasonable
doubt as to the guilt of the accused,he must be acquitted," lie ask the Commission
to find as to the accused, Sergeant Takano, Masayoshi, the s ecification not
proved and the accused is of the charge not guilty and the commission does there—

; f?I‘E acquit the said Sergeant Takano, Masayoshi of the specification of the charge
of murder.

MARTIN E.-CARLSON,

Commander, USHNR.
II'H h"
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AFFIDAVIT FOR THE CHARACTER OF SERGEANT MAJOR TAKANO,
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Former Captain NAKANO, Masand,

To Tour Honor, The President of the Military Commission,

I certify the above to be & trus and complete trenslation to the best

of my ability of the original affidavit written in Jegenese,

Lisutenant (jg), USHR,
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UNITED STATES FACIFIC FLIXT
AND PACIFIC OCEAN ARKA
Headquarters of the Commander in Chief

Cinepaes File o/o Fleet Post Office,
Al17=2% San Franeisco, Celifornmia,
serta1 11490 TDEC 1546

In reviewing the record of proceedings, it is noted that on page one “an
interpreter read the precept in Japenese," lio interpreters are showm to have
been present anc it is not until pege three of the record that interpreters
are first showm to have beem introduced and sworn. lo objection was made to
thie irregulerity, It is not comsiderec, therefore, that the righte of the
defendant have beem rrejudiced.

Subject to the foregoing, the roceedings, findinge, sentence and the
action of the convening suthority thereon, in the foregoing case of Sergeant
Masayoshi Takano, IJA, are approved,

The record is, in conformity with section D~14, Naval Courts and Boards,
and Chisf of Naval Uperstioms Serial #01P22 of 28 November 1945, transmitted
to the Judge Advocate Gemeral of the Nevy for revision and recerd.

J. H, TOW:RS
Admirel, U.8, Navy,
Commander in Chief
United States Pasific Fleet,
and Pacific Oosan Areas,
and the Militery Governer of the
Paoific Ocean Areas.

To: Judge Advoocate Oencral.

Rer Record of procsedings of Military Conmission - case of Sergeant Masayoshi
TAKANO, IJA,

Coples to:
ComMARIANAS

IoComGUAN
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NaovY DEPARTMENT =
Op22D=FLF OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS
Berial No. l41F22 WasmineTton 25, D. C.
q&..r gﬁ:{
s 81 FEB 1947
Iﬁgﬂ
End-1
On Offlce of JAG Record of Proceedings, MILCOM-TAKANO,
Masayoshi/A17-20 I (1/3/47) rld, dtd 18 February 1947.

From: Chief of Naval Operations.
To: Judge Advocate (General /. —
Bub ject: Record of Proceedings of Milltary Commiesesion

at Guam in the case of Masayoshl Takano.

1. Returned, contents noted.
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MILOOM-TAKANO ,Masxy b2ns /ALT-20 S
T (1/8/47)RAC: £14 4 éﬁhﬁ ;
: 154039 ‘ .
BRIFF IN MILIRARY C SION CASE OF
SERGEANT MASAYOSHT TAKANO, IMPERTAL
JAPANESE ARMY, TRIED 21 OSTOBER 1946.
FLEA  EDDING  C/A AOTION
CHARGE  Murder. NG ¢ Approved
Spee, Murdered an American prisomer NG Proved Approved
gr war at Chichi{ Jima, Bonin
slands.

EEEEEEE! Confinement for & period of nine (9] years.
AGTION OF CONVENING AUTHORITY Approved.

FACTS The accused while attached to the 307th Independent Infantry
Battalion, First Mixed Brigade, IJA, on Chichi Jima, Bonin
Islands, exacuted an American prisoner of war by bayoneting
him in obedience to an order received by him from Lieutenant
Colonel Kikuji Ito, Imperial Japanése Army.

REMARKS The record indicates that other Japanese army persomnel were
implicated with the accused. The record of proceedings im
their casee have either been reviewed-or are being reviewed.
They are:

Lisut.Colonel Kikuji ITO, case being reviewed.
Liesut.Colonel Takemune KﬁTO, cage hag beén reviewed,.
First Lieut. (Captain) Shigeo IKAWA K case being reviewed.
First Lieut. NMagao YAMASHITA, case has been reviewed.
Superior Pvt. Matsutaro KIDO, case being reviewed.
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PRS- . OFFICE OF THE JUDGE ADVOCATE GENERAL
TAKANO ,Masayoshi/ WASHINGTON 28, D. €.

18 FEB 1947

. The proceedings, fimdings and sentence in the forego-
ing military commission case of Sergeant Masayoshi Takamo,
Imperial Japanese Army, and the action of the convening
and reviewing authorities thereon are, in the opinion of
the Judge Advoocate General, walid.

Referred to the Chief of Naval Operations (Op22) for
information.

. 3.00L
Judge Advocate Genaral of
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1. Are the precept and any modifications thereof certified | Yes Remarks
as true copies by the judge advocate? v
2, Does the record show plece and time bhe court convened? 4 ia
3. Were there five members or more present at every /
meeting?
Le Were the members and judge advocate shown to be present ol
named in the precept or its medifications? \
5. Was the accused asked vhether he desired counsel? !"f :
6. Was the accused extended the right of challenge as to ~
members? |
il |
7. Were the judge advocate, the members, and the reporter w o |
sworn? .
>
8, Did the accused acknowledge receipt of a copy of
charges and specifications?
9. Was the accused asked if he had any objection to the e
charges and specifications?
"
10, Was the accused aslked if he wos ready for trial?
11. Does the record show thot no witnesses not otherwise " |
connected with the trizl were present? /
12, Was the accused properly arraigned?

—— =
"—I
LWL
-

16,

17.
].B-

19.

20,

L

¥as the accused warmed as to the effect of his pleas
of guilty?

Vias the accused's response, if any, recorded?
Was the accused afforded opportunity te make a
statement?
Was the accused afforded opportunity to meke an
ergument?
Were the witnesses, if any, sworn?
Was the sentence authenticated by the signatures of
all members of the court and of the judge advocate?
Vlas the record authenticated by the signature of the
president of the court and of the judge advocate?
Was the mﬂld'"ruln for a copy of the prog
Lqpcndod te the ord?
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2., Was the sourt convensd by proper authority?

23.

2l

Did the court have jurisdiction of the person and
offense?

Was the accused's statement consistent with his
pleas?

. Are the findings preoperly recorded?

Is the evidence, if any, of previous convictions
rAriesihle?

Is the sentence legal and in proper form?
Do:e the tction of the convening authority:

(a) ‘‘morosalyr approve the proceedings, findings

ad e,

tar 087

(b, T= Lne nelion otherwice legel?
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